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Nokia Corporation 
Interim report

STOCK EXCHANGE RELEASE 18 April 2024

18 April 2024 at 08:00 EEST 
Nokia Corporation Interim Report for Q1 2024 
Strong cash flow and improving orders despite market weakness
	●
●
●
	As expected, a slow start to 2024 with net sales declining 19% y-o-y in constant currency (-20% reported) in Q1. Environment still challenging but order trends continue to improve year-on-year, particularly in Network Infrastructure. Comparable gross margin in Q1 increased by 1 090bps y-o-y to 48.6% (reported increased 1 040bps to 47.9%). Strong


contribution from Nokia Technologies which benefited from significant catch-up net sales, in addition to significant improvements in Mobile Networks due in part to regional and product mix.
●	Q1 comparable operating margin increased 460bps y-o-y to 12.8% (reported up 130bps to 8.6%), as licensing catch-up net 	sales more than made up for low net sales coverage of operating expenses impacting other business groups.
●	Q1 comparable diluted EPS of EUR 0.09; reported diluted EPS of EUR 0.08.
	Q1 free cash flow almost EUR 1bn, net cash balance EUR 5.1bn.●
●	Nokia's full year 2024 outlook is unchanged. Nokia currently expects comparable operating profit of between EUR 2.3 billion to 	2.9 billion and free cash flow conversion from comparable operating profit of between 30% and 60%.
This is a summary of the Nokia Corporation Interim Report for Q1 2024 published today. Nokia only publishes a summary of its financial reports in stock exchange releases. The summary focuses on Nokia Group's financial information as well as on Nokia's outlook. The detailed, segment-level discussion will be available in the complete financial report hosted at www.nokia.com/financials.


A video interview summarizing the key points of our Q1 results will also be published on the website. Investors should not solely rely on summaries of Nokia's financial reports and should also review the complete reports with tables.
PEKKA LUNDMARK, PRESIDENT AND CEO, ON Q1 2024 RESULTS
As expected, the ongoing market weakness drove a 19% year-on-year constant currency decline in net sales in the first quarter. However, we have seen continued improvement in order intake, meaning we remain confident in a stronger second half and achieving our full year outlook. Driven by the patent licensing deals signed in Nokia Technologies, we achieved a comparable operating margin of 12.8% in Q1, compared to 8.2% the year before. We also generated almost EUR 1 billion in free cash flow in the quarter, which is a very strong performance.
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I’m pleased that the improving order intake we started to see in Network Infrastructure at the end of last year continued in Q1 with year-on-year growth in order intake and drove a further increase in our backlog. The outlook for Fixed Networks for 2024 has improved which is an important signal as this market often recovers first. However, we believe the recovery in Optical Networks may take somewhat longer. While we are conscious of the broader economic environment, considering the on-going order intake strength, we expect Network Infrastructure will return to net sales growth for full year 2024 with a stronger second half performance.
Mobile Networks was impacted by particularly low levels of spending in North America and India, which led to a Q1 net sales decline of 37% in constant currency. A slower pace of spending in India was anticipated following the rapid 5G deployment seen in H1 2023, and our expectations for India for the full year remain unchanged. Globally, we expect Q1 to mark the low point in demand with activity then progressively picking up through the remainder of 2024 consistent with more normal seasonality. We saw significant strength in gross margin at 42% in the quarter, which is a solid improvement from the 34% in the year-ago quarter. Approximately half of this improvement was related to improving regional and product mix, while the remainder was due to exceptionally low indirect cost of sales.
Cloud and Network Services saw a soft start to the year which was related to the challenging spending environment. However, we are seeing improving order intake and pipeline momentum. Importantly, we are also making good progress with our Network as Code platform. This platform enables operators to monetize their 5G investments, creating new revenue streams by offering developers advanced API access to the network. We now have a total of 11 operators signed up to the platform with many more in active discussions.
Nokia Technologies had a very strong start to the year as we concluded a number of outstanding licensing deals in the quarter. This meant that our annual licensing net sales run-rate improved from the EUR 0.9 to 1.0 billion we had in Q4 to approximately EUR 1.3 billion in Q1. In addition to the run-rate increase, we benefited from more than EUR 400 million of catch-up net sales in the quarter. We have now concluded our smartphone licensing renewal cycle with no major renewals due for a number of years. This means Nokia Technologies has entered a period of stability. The business will now focus its resources on expanding in new growth areas with the next goal to increase our annual licensing net sales run-rate to EUR 1.4 to 1.5 billion in the mid-term.
We have been executing quickly on the operating model changes we announced back in October along with our cost savings roadmap. These actions, combined with our expectation for improved net sales growth in the second half of the year, supported by our order backlog, mean we are solidly on track to achieve our full year comparable operating profit outlook of EUR 2.3 to 2.9 billion and free cash flow conversion of 30% to 60%.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS
Constant 
currency 
	EUR million (except for EPS in EUR)
	Q1'24
	Q1'23
	YoY change 
	YoY change 



	Reported results
	
	
	
	

	Net sales
	4 667 
	5 859 
	(20)%
	(19)%

	Gross margin %
	47.9%
	37.5% 
	1 040bps 
	

	Research and development expenses
	(1 135)
	(1 108) 
	2%
	

	Selling, general and administrative expenses
	(708)
	(729) 
	(3)%
	


Operating profit
	
	400 
	426 
	(6)%

	Operating margin %
	8.6%
	7.3% 
	130bps 

	Profit for the period
	438 
	289 
	52%

	EPS, diluted
	0.08 
	0.05 
	60%

	Net cash and interest-bearing financial investments
	5 137 
	4 304 
	19%



	Comparable results






	Net sales
	4 667 
	5 859 
	(20)%
	(19)%

	Gross margin %
	48.6%
	37.7% 
	1 090bps 
	

	Research and development expenses
	(1 086)
	(1 093) 
	(1)%
	

	Selling, general and administrative expenses
	(596)
	(642) 
	(7)%
	

	Operating profit
	597 
	479 
	25%
	

	Operating margin %
	12.8%
	8.2% 
	460bps 
	

	Profit for the period
	501 
	342 
	46%
	

	EPS, diluted
	0.09 
	0.06 
	50%
	

	ROIC(1)
	10.8%
	15.8% 
	(500)bps 
	


1 Comparable ROIC = Comparable operating profit after tax, last four quarters / invested capital, average of last five quarters ending balances. Refer to the Performance measures section in Nokia Corporation Interim Report for Q1 2024 for details.
Cloud and
	Business group results
	Network
	Mobile 
	Network
	Nokia 
	Group Common

	
	Infrastructure
	Networks
	Services
	Technologies
	and Other

	EUR million
	 Q1'24
	 Q1'23   Q1'24
	 Q1'23   Q1'24
	 Q1'23
	 Q1'24   Q1'23   Q1'24
	 Q1'23

	Net sales
	 1 662 
	 2 248   1 577 
	 2 567 
	652 
	760 
	757 
	242 
	23 
	48 

	YoY change
	(26)%
	(39)%
	(14)%
	213%
	(52)%

	Constant currency YoY change
	(26)%
	(37)%
	(13)%
	216%
	(53)%

	Gross margin %
	36.8%
	38.0%
	42.4%
	33.8%
	35.9%
	32.8%   100.0%  100.0%
	(4.3)%
	(12.5)%

	Operating profit/(loss)
	82 
	344 
	(42)
	137 
	(27)
	(20)
	658 
	149 
	(75)
	(131)

	Operating margin %
	4.9%
	15.3%
	(2.7)%
	5.3%
	(4.1)%
	(2.6)%
	86.9%
	61.6%  (326.1)%  (272.9)%


SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION
Dividend
Under the authorization by the Annual General Meeting held on 3 April 2024, the Board of Directors may resolve on the distribution of an aggregate maximum of EUR 0.13 per share to be paid in respect of financial year 2023. The authorization will be used to distribute dividend and/or assets from the reserve for invested unrestricted equity in four installments during the authorization period, in connection with the quarterly results, unless the Board decides otherwise for a justified reason.
On 18 April 2024, the Board resolved to distribute a dividend of EUR 0.04 per share. The dividend record date is on 23 April 2024 and the dividend will be paid on 3 May 2024. The actual dividend payment date outside Finland will be determined by the practices of the intermediary banks transferring the dividend payments.
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Following this announced distribution, the Board’s remaining distribution authorization is a maximum of EUR 0.09 per share.
Share buyback program
In January 2024, Nokia’s Board of Directors initiated a share buyback program to repurchase shares to return up to EUR 600 million of cash to shareholders in tranches over a period of two years. The first EUR 300 million phase of the share buyback program started in March 2024 and it will end at the latest by 18 December 2024. Under this phase, Nokia has by 31 March 2024 repurchased 3 290 248 of its own shares at an average price per share of approximately EUR 3.27.
OUTLOOK
Full Year 2024
	Comparable operating profit(1)
	EUR 2.3 billion to EUR 2.9 billion

	Free cash flow(1)
	30% to 60% conversion from comparable operating profit


1Please refer to Performance measures section in Nokia Corporation Interim Report for Q1 2024 for a full explanation of how these terms are defined.
The outlook, long-term targets and all of the underlying outlook assumptions described below are forward-looking statements subject to a number of risks and uncertainties as described or referred to in the Risk Factors section later in this release. Along with Nokia's official outlook targets provided above, below are outlook assumptions by business group that support the group level outlook.
Nokia business group assumptions (full year 2024)
	
	Net sales growth (constant currency) 
	Operating margin

	Network Infrastructure
	+2% to +8%
	11.5% to 14.5%

	Mobile Networks
	-15% to -10%
	1.0% to 4.0%

	Cloud and Network Services
	-2% to +3%
	6.0% to 9.0%


Nokia provides the following approximate outlook assumptions for additional items concerning 2024:


	Full year 2024
	Comment


Nokia continues to expect weak profit generation in the first half 
followed by a significantly stronger H2 in Network Infrastructure, 
Mobile Networks and Cloud and Network Services in 2024. Since
	Seasonality
	H2 weighted
	2016 the average Q2 sequential increase in net sales has been

	
	
	5% in these businesses combined (driven by Network


Infrastructure and Mobile Networks) and Nokia expects to see a 
greater than average sequential increase in Q2 2024 considering 
the low level of activity in Q1. 
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Nokia expects cash generation in Nokia Technologies to be EUR
	Nokia Technologies operating profit
	at least
	700 million below operating profit in 2024 due to prepayments

	
	
	received in 2023. From 2025 onwards Nokia expects greater

	
	EUR 1.4 billion
	

	
	
	alignment between cash generation and operating profit in Nokia


Technologies.
This includes central function costs which are expected to be 
largely stable at approximately EUR 200 million and an increase in
	Group Common and Other operating
	EUR 350 million
	investment in long-term research to approximately EUR 150

	expenses
	
	million. Group Common and Other will also account for any future


revaluation impacts of venture fund investments with no 
assumption made on this so far.
	Comparable financial income and expenses
	EUR 0 to positive 
	Reflecting improved cash generation in Q1 and interest rates

	
	EUR 100 million
	remaining higher than previously expected (increasing interest

	
	(update)
	income) we now expect an improved financial income and

	
	
	expense result.

	Comparable income tax rate
	~25%
	

	Cash outflows related to income taxes
	EUR 450 million
	

	
	(update)
	

	Capital Expenditures
	EUR 600 million
	


2026 TARGETS
Nokia's current targets for 2026 are outlined below. Nokia sees further opportunities to increase margins beyond 2026 and believes an operating margin of 14% remains achievable over the longer term.
	Net sales
	Grow faster than the market

	Comparable operating margin(1)
	≥ 13%

	Free cash flow(1)
	55% to 85% conversion from comparable operating profit


1 Please refer to Performance measures section in Nokia Corporation Interim Report for Q1 2024 report for a full explanation of how these terms are defined.
The comparable operating margin target for Nokia group is built on the following assumptions by business group for 2026:
	Network Infrastructure
	12 - 15% operating margin

	Mobile Networks
	6 - 9% operating margin

	Cloud and Network Services
	7 - 10% operating margin

	Nokia Technologies
	Operating profit more than EUR 1.1 billion

	Group common and other
	Approximately EUR 300 million of operating expenses


RISK FACTORS
Nokia and its businesses are exposed to a number of risks and uncertainties which include but are not limited to:
	●
●
●
●
●
	Competitive intensity, which is expected to continue at a high level as some competitors seek to take share; Changes in customer network investments related to their ability to monetize the network; 
Our ability to ensure competitiveness of our product roadmaps and costs through additional R&D investments; Our ability to procure certain standard components and the costs thereof, such as semiconductors; 
Disturbance in the global supply chain;
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●	Impact of inflation, increased global macro-uncertainty, major currency fluctuations and higher interest rates;
●	Potential economic impact and disruption of global pandemics;
●	War or other geopolitical conflicts, disruptions and potential costs thereof;
●	Other macroeconomic, industry and competitive developments;
●	Timing and value of new, renewed and existing patent licensing agreements with licensees;
●	Results in brand and technology licensing; costs to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights; on-going litigation with 	respect to licensing and regulatory landscape for patent licensing;
●	The outcomes of on-going and potential disputes and litigation;
●	Timing of completions and acceptances of certain projects;
●	Our product and regional mix;
●	Uncertainty in forecasting income tax expenses and cash outflows, over the long-term, as they are also subject to possible 	changes due to business mix, the timing of patent licensing cash flow and changes in tax legislation, including potential tax 	reforms in various countries and OECD initiatives;
●	Our ability to utilize our Finnish deferred tax assets and their recognition on our balance sheet;
●	Our ability to meet our sustainability and other ESG targets, including our targets relating to greenhouse gas emissions;
as well the risk factors specified under Forward-looking statements of this release, and our 2023 annual report on Form 20-F published on 29 February 2024 under Operating and financial review and prospects-Risk factors.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Certain statements herein that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements reflect Nokia's current expectations and views of future developments and include statements regarding: A) expectations, plans, benefits or outlook related to our strategies, projects, product launches, growth management, licenses, sustainability and other ESG targets, operational key performance indicators and decisions on market exits; B) expectations, plans or benefits related to future performance of our businesses (including the expected impact, timing and duration of potential global pandemics, geopolitical conflicts and the general or regional macroeconomic conditions on our businesses, our supply chain, the timing of market changes or turning points in demand and our customers’ businesses) and any future dividends and other distributions of profit; C) expectations and targets regarding financial performance and results of operations, including market share, prices, net sales, income, margins, cash flows, cost savings, the timing of receivables, operating expenses, provisions, impairments, taxes, currency exchange rates, hedging, investment funds, inflation, product cost reductions, competitiveness, revenue generation in any specific region, and licensing income and payments; D) ability to execute, expectations, plans or benefits related to changes in organizational structure and operating model; E) impact on revenue with respect to litigation/renewal discussions; and F) any statements preceded by or including “continue”, “believe”, “commit”, “envisage”, “estimate”, “expect”, “aim”, “influence”, “will”, “target”, “likely”, “intend”,“may”, “could”, “would”, “forecast”, “plan” or similar expressions. These forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, which could cause our actual results to differ materially from such statements. These statements are based on management’s best assumptions and beliefs in light of the information currently available to them. These forward-looking statements are only predictions based upon our current expectations and views of future events and developments and are subject to risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that will occur in the future. Factors, including risks and uncertainties that could cause these differences, include those risks and uncertainties identified in the Risk Factors above.
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ANALYST WEBCAST
● Nokia's webcast will begin on 18 April 2024 at 11.30 a.m. Finnish time (EEST). The webcast will last approximately 60 minutes.
● The webcast will be a presentation followed by a Q&A session. Presentation slides will be available for download at 	www.nokia.com/financials.
● A link to the webcast will be available at www.nokia.com/financials.
● Media representatives can listen in via the link, or alternatively call +1-412-317-5619.


FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2024
●	Nokia plans to publish its second quarter and half year 2024 results on 18 July 2024.
●	Nokia plans to publish its third quarter and January-September 2024 results on 17 October 2024.
About Nokia
At Nokia, we create technology that helps the world act together.
As a B2B technology innovation leader, we are pioneering networks that sense, think and act by leveraging our work across mobile, fixed and cloud networks. In addition, we create value with intellectual property and long-term research, led by the award-winning Nokia Bell Labs.
Service providers, enterprises and partners worldwide trust Nokia to deliver secure, reliable and sustainable networks today – and work with us to create the digital services and applications of the future.
Inquiries:
Nokia 
Communications 
Phone: +358 10 448 4900 
Email: press.services@nokia.com 
Maria Vaismaa, Global Head of External Communications
Nokia 
Investor Relations 
Phone: +358 4080 3 4080 
Email: investor.relations@nokia.com
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	Interim Report for Q1 2024 Strong cash flow and 
improving orders despite market weakness ▪ As 
expected, a slow start to 2024 with net sales 
declining 19% y-o-y in constant currency (-20% 
reported) in Q1. ▪ Environment still challenging but 
order trends continue to improve year-on-year, 
particularly in Network Infrastructure. ▪ Comparable 
gross margin in Q1 increased by 1 090bps y-o-y to 
48.6% (reported increased 1 040bps to 47.9%). Strong contribution from Nokia Technologies which benefited 
from significant catch-up net sales, in addition to significant improvements in Mobile Networks due in part to regional and product mix. ▪ Q1 comparable operating margin 
increased 460bps y-o-y to 12.8% (reported up 130bps 
to 8.6%), as licensing catch-up net sales more than 
made up for low net sales coverage of operating 
expenses impacting other business groups. ▪ Q1 
comparable diluted EPS of EUR 0.09; reported diluted 
EPS of EUR 0.08. ▪ Q1 free cash flow almost EUR 1bn, net cash balance EUR 5.1bn. ▪ Nokia's full year 2024 
outlook is unchanged. Nokia currently expects 
comparable operating profit of between EUR 2.3 billion to 2.9 billion and free cash flow conversion from 
comparable operating profit of between 30% and 
60%. EUR million (except for EPS in EUR) Q1'24 Q1'23 
YoY change Constant currency YoY change Reported 
results Net sales 4 667 5 859 (20)% (19)% Gross margin % 47.9% 37.5% 1 040bps Research and development 
expenses (1 135) (1 108) 2% Selling, general and 
administrative expenses (708) (729) (3)% Operating 
profit 400 426 (6)% Operating margin % 8.6% 7.3% 
130bps Profit for the period 438 289 52% EPS, diluted 
0.08 0.05 60% Net cash and interest-bearing financial 
investments 5 137 4 304 19% Comparable results Net sales 4 667 5 859 (20)% (19)% Gross margin % 48.6% 37.7% 1 090bps Research and development expenses (1 086) (1 093) (1)% Selling, general and 
administrative expenses (596) (642) (7)% Operating 
profit 597 479 25% Operating margin % 12.8% 8.2% 
460bps Profit for the period 501 342 46% EPS, diluted 
0.09 0.06 50% ROIC(1) 10.8% 15.8% (500)bps (1) 
Comparable ROIC = Comparable operating profit after tax, last four quarters / invested capital, average of 
last five quarters’ ending balances. Refer to the 
Performance measures section in this report for details.
Network Infrastructure Mobile Networks Cloud and 
Network Services Nokia Technologies Group Common and Other EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 Q1'24 Q1'23 Q1'24 Q1'23 Q1'24 Q1'23 Q1'24 Q1'23 Net sales 1 662 2 248 1 577 2 567 652 760 757 242 23 48 YoY change (26)% (39)% (14)% 213% (52)% Constant currency YoY 
change (26)% (37)% (13)% 216% (53)% Gross margin % 36.8% 38.0% 42.4% 33.8% 35.9% 32.8% 100.0% 100.0% (4.3)% (12.5)% Operating profit/(loss) 82 344 (42) 137 (27) (20) 658 149 (75) (131) Operating margin % 4.9% 15.3% (2.7)% 5.3% (4.1)% (2.6)% 86.9% 61.6% 
(326.1)% (272.9)% 18 April 2024 1
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	As expected, the ongoing market weakness drove a 
19% year-on-year constant currency decline in net 
sales in the first quarter. However, we have seen 
continued improvement in order intake, meaning we 
remain confident in a stronger second half and 
achieving our full year outlook. Driven by the 
patent licensing deals signed in Nokia Technologies, 
we achieved a comparable operating margin of 12.8% in Q1, compared to 8.2% the year before. We also 
generated almost EUR 1 billion in free cash flow in the quarter, which is a very strong performance. I’m pleased that the improving order intake we started to see in 
Network Infrastructure at the end of last year continued in Q1 with year-on-year growth in order intake and 
drove a further increase in our backlog. The outlook 
for Fixed Networks for 2024 has improved which is an 
important signal as this market often recovers first.
However, we believe the recovery in Optical 
Networks may take somewhat longer. While we are 
conscious of the broader economic environment, 
considering the on-going order intake strength, we 
expect Network Infrastructure will return to net sales 
growth for full year 2024 with a stronger second half 
performance. Mobile Networks was impacted by 
particularly low levels of spending in North America and India, which led to a Q1 net sales decline of 37% in 
constant currency. A slower pace of spending in India was anticipated following the rapid 5G deployment 
seen in H1 2023, and our expectations for India for 
the full year remain unchanged. Globally, we 
expect Q1 to mark the low point in demand with activity then progressively picking up through the remainder of 2024 consistent with more normal seasonality. We saw significant strength in gross margin at 42% in the 
quarter, which is a solid improvement from the 34% 
in the year-ago quarter. Approximately half of this 
improvement was related to improving regional and 
product mix, while the remainder was due to 
exceptionally low indirect cost of sales. Cloud and 
Network Services saw a soft start to the year which was related to the challenging spending environment.
However, we are seeing improving order intake and pipeline momentum. Importantly, we are also making good progress with our Network as Code platform. This platform enables operators to monetize their 5G 
investments, creating new revenue streams by offering developers advanced API access to the network. We now have a total of 11 operators signed up to the 
platform with many more in active discussions. Nokia Technologies had a very strong start to the year as we concluded a number of outstanding licensing deals in the quarter. This meant that our annual licensing net sales run-rate improved from the EUR 0.9 to 1.0 billion we had in Q4 to approximately EUR 1.3 billion in Q1. In addition to the run-rate increase, we benefited from more than EUR 400 million of catch-up net sales in the quarter. We have now concluded our smartphone 
licensing renewal cycle with no major renewals due for a number of years. This means Nokia Technologies has entered a period of stability. The business will now 
focus its resources on expanding in new growth areas with the next goal to increase our annual licensing 
net sales run-rate to EUR 1.4 to 1.5 billion in the mid-term. We have been executing quickly on the 
operating model changes we announced back in 
October along with our cost savings roadmap. These actions, combined with our expectation for improved net sales growth in the second half of the year, 
supported by our order backlog, mean we are solidly on track to achieve our full year comparable operating profit outlook of EUR 2.3 to 2.9 billion and free cash flow conversion of 30% to 60%. Shareholder distribution Dividend Under the authorization by the Annual 
General Meeting held on 3 April 2024, the Board of 
Directors may resolve on the distribution of an 
aggregate maximum of EUR 0.13 per share to be paid in respect of financial year 2023. The authorization will be used to distribute dividend and/or assets from the reserve for invested unrestricted equity in four 
installments during the authorization period, in 
connection with the quarterly results, unless the Board decides otherwise for a justified reason. On 18 April 2024, the Board resolved to distribute a dividend of EUR 0.04 per share. The dividend record date is on 
23 April 2024 and the dividend will be paid on 3 May 2024. The actual dividend payment date outside 
Finland will be determined by the practices of the 
intermediary banks transferring the dividend 
payments. Following this announced distribution, the Board’s remaining distribution authorization is a 
maximum of EUR 0.09 per share. Share buyback 
program In January 2024, Nokia’s Board of Directors initiated a share buyback program to repurchase 
shares to return up to EUR 600 million of cash to 
shareholders in tranches over a period of two years. The first EUR 300 million phase of the share buyback 
program started in March 2024 and it will end at the latest by 18 December 2024. Under this phase, Nokia has by 31 March 2024 repurchased 3 290 248 of its own shares at an average price per share of 
approximately EUR 3.27. 18 April 2024 2
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	Outlook Full Year 2024 Comparable operating profit(1) EUR 2.3 billion to EUR 2.9 billion Free cash flow(1) 
30% to 60% conversion from comparable operating 
profit (1) Please refer to Performance measures 
section in this report for a full explanation of how these terms are defined. The outlook, long-term targets and all of the underlying outlook assumptions described 
below are forward-looking statements subject to a 
number of risks and uncertainties as described or 
referred to in the Risk Factors section later in this 
report. Along with Nokia's official outlook targets 
provided above, below are outlook assumptions by 
business group that support the group level outlook.
Nokia business group assumptions (full year 2024) 
Net sales growth (constant currency) Operating 
margin Network Infrastructure +2% to +8% 11.5% to 14.5% Mobile Networks -15% to -10% 1.0% to 4.0% 
Cloud and Network Services -2% to +3% 6.0% to 9.0% Nokia provides the following approximate outlook 
assumptions for additional items concerning 2024: Full year 2024 Comment Seasonality H2 weighted Nokia 
continues to expect weak profit generation in the first half followed by a significantly stronger H2 in Network Infrastructure, Mobile Networks and Cloud and Network Services in 2024. Since 2016 the average Q2 sequential increase in net sales has been 5% in these businesses combined (driven by Network Infrastructure and 
Mobile Networks) and Nokia expects to see a greater 
than average sequential increase in Q2 2024 
considering the low level of activity in Q1. Nokia 
Technologies operating profit at least EUR 1.4 billion 
Nokia expects cash generation in Nokia Technologies to be EUR 700 million below operating profit in 2024 
due to prepayments received in 2023. From 2025 
onwards Nokia expects greater alignment between 
cash generation and operating profit in Nokia 
Technologies. Group Common and Other operating 
expenses EUR 350 million This includes central function costs which are expected to be largely stable at 
approximately EUR 200 million and an increase in 
investment in long-term research to approximately EUR 150 million. Group Common and Other will also account for any future revaluation impacts of venture fund 
investments with no assumption made on this so far.
Comparable financial income and expenses EUR 0 to positive EUR 100 million (update) Reflecting improved cash generation in Q1 and interest rates remaining higher than previously expected (increasing interest income) we now expect an improved financial income and expense result. Comparable income tax rate ~25% Cash outflows related to income taxes EUR 450 million (update) Capital Expenditures EUR 600 million 2026 targets Nokia's current targets for 2026 are outlined below. Nokia sees further opportunities to increase 
margins beyond 2026 and believes an operating 
margin of 14% remains achievable over the longer 
term. Net sales Grow faster than the market 
Comparable operating margin(1) ≥ 13% Free cash 
flow(1) 55% to 85% conversion from comparable 
operating profit (1) Please refer to Performance 
measures section in this report for a full explanation of how these terms are defined. The comparable operating margin target for Nokia group is built on the following assumptions by business group for 2026: Network 
Infrastructure 12 - 15% operating margin Mobile 
Networks 6 - 9% operating margin Cloud and Network Services 7 - 10% operating margin Nokia 
Technologies Operating profit more than EUR 1.1 
billion Group common and other Approximately EUR 300 million of operating expenses 18 April 2024 3
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	Financial Results Q1 2024 compared to Q1 2023 Net 
sales In Q1 2024, reported net sales decreased 20% 
and were negatively impacted by foreign exchange 
rate fluctuations along with the following drivers. On a constant currency basis, Nokia's net sales decreased 
19% year-on-year, with declines across all network 
businesses. Nokia Technologies increased by 216% 
benefiting from catch-up net sales related to licensing agreements made with smartphone vendors. Network Infrastructure declined 26% compared to a strong Q1 2023 and as it continued to experience weaker demand largely related to macroeconomic uncertainty. Mobile Networks decreased 37% largely driven by India as 
5G deployments continued to moderate after significant investment in the first half of 2023 and by North 
America, where demand remained weak. Additionally, Cloud and Network Services net sales decreased 13%.
Gross margin Reported gross margin increased 1 040 basis points to 47.9% in Q1 2024 and comparable gross margin increased 1 090 basis points to 48.6%. Gross 
margin performance mainly reflected the benefits of 
the catch-up net sales in Nokia Technologies and strong improvements in Mobile Networks gross margin in part due to more favorable regional and product mix.
Operating profit and margin Reported operating profit in Q1 2024 decreased 6% and was EUR 400 million, or 8.6% of net sales, up from 7.3% in the year-ago 
quarter. Comparable operating profit increased 25% to EUR 597 million, while comparable operating margin was 12.8%, up from 8.2% in the year-ago quarter.
This increase was mainly driven by the over EUR 400 
million of catch-up net sales in Nokia Technologies, while operating expenses declined, but at a slower pace 
than net sales. Nokia's venture fund investments had 
no impact in Q1 2024 compared to a loss of 
approximately EUR 30 million in Q1 2023. The impact 
of hedging in Q1 2024 was positive EUR 10 million, 
similar to Q1 2023. In Q1 2024, the difference between reported and comparable operating profit was primarily related to restructuring and associated charges, the 
amortization of acquired intangible assets and the 
impairment and write-off of assets. In Q1 2023, the 
difference between reported and comparable 
operating profit was related to the amortization of 
acquired intangible assets and restructuring and 
associated charges. This was partially offset by the 
partial reversal of a provision associated with a country exit and the divestment of businesses. Profit for the 
period Reported net profit in Q1 2024 was EUR 438 
million, compared to net profit of EUR 289 million in Q1 2023. Comparable net profit in Q1 2024 was EUR 501 
million, compared to EUR 342 million in Q1 2023. The 
increase in comparable net profit was primarily driven by the increase in comparable operating profit and a 
net positive fluctuation in financial income and 
expenses, partially offset by higher income tax 
expense. The positive movement in financial income and expenses mainly reflected favorable foreign 
exchange rates. Apart from the items affecting 
comparability included in operating profit (and their 
associated tax effects), the difference between 
reported and comparable net profit in Q1 2024 was 
mainly due to a change in the recognition of deferred 
tax assets. There were no significant items beyond 
those impacting the difference in operating profit that 
impacted the comparability between reported and 
comparable net profit in Q1 2023. Earnings per share 
Reported diluted EPS was EUR 0.08 in Q1 2024, 
compared to EUR 0.05 in Q1 2023. Comparable diluted EPS was EUR 0.09 in Q1 2024 compared to EUR 0.06 in Q1 2023. Comparable return on Invested Capital 
(ROIC) Q1 2024 comparable ROIC was 10.8%, 
compared to 15.8% in Q1 2023. The decrease reflected higher average invested capital for the rolling four 
quarters, combined with lower operating profit after 
tax for the rolling four quarters. The higher average 
invested capital reflected growth in average total 
equity and a decrease in average total cash and 
interest-bearing financial investments, partially offset 
by a decrease in average total interest-bearing 
liabilities. Cash performance During Q1 2024, net 
cash increased EUR 814 million, resulting in an end-of-quarter net cash balance of EUR 5 137 million, 
benefiting in part from catch-up payments related to 
licensing deals signed in Q1 2024. Total cash 
increased EUR 393 million sequentially to EUR 8 907 
million. Free cash flow was positive EUR 955 million in 
Q1 2024. Additional topics Change in presentation of 
regional financial information Starting from Q1 2024, 
Nokia provides regional net sales information for the 
Nokia group and its reportable segments based on three geographical areas: 1) Americas, 2) APAC, and 3) EMEA. Net sales information for the group is further divided into 
sub-regions as follows: Americas consists of North 
America and Latin America, APAC consists of Greater 
China, India and Rest of APAC (formerly reported as 
Asia Pacific region), and EMEA consists of Europe and 
Middle East & Africa. Net sales for the Submarine 
Networks business are provided separately from 
the geographical regions. The purpose of the change is to increase transparency of net sales information for 
the reportable segments. The comparative regional net sales information for each quarter and full year 
2023 is provided in the financial statement information section Note 3. Net sales. Change in definition of free 
cash flow Beginning with its Annual Report 2023, Nokia changed how it defines its free cash flow measure to 
better align it with common practice and Non-GAAP 
reporting guidelines. Previously, Nokia defined free 
cash flow as net cash flows from operating activities –
purchases of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets (capital expenditures) + proceeds 
from sale of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets – purchase of non-current financial 
investments + proceeds from sale of non-current 
financial investments. The new definition is net cash 
flows from operating activities – purchases of 
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
(capital expenditures). The comparative amounts for 
free cash flow presented in this report have been 
revised accordingly. 18 April 2024 4
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	Segment Details Network Infrastructure EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 YoY change Constant currency YoY 
change Net sales 1 662 2 248 (26)% (26)% IP Networks 594 781 (24)% (23)% Optical Networks 344 533 (35)% (34)% Fixed Networks 500 650 (23)% (22)% Submarine Networks 223 285 (22)% (23)% Gross profit 611 855 (29)% Gross margin % 36.8% 38.0% (120)bps Operating profit 82 344 (76)% Operating margin % 4.9% 15.3% (1 040)bps Net sales by region Americas 545 865 (37)% (36)% APAC 286 484 (41)% (39)% EMEA 608 614 (1)% (1)% Submarine Networks 223 285 (22)% (23)% Network Infrastructure net sales declined 26% on both a 
reported basis and constant currency basis in the first quarter, in comparison to a strong year-ago quarter. As expected, the demand environment remained weak in the first quarter. The business continued to experience headwinds which were largely related to 
macroeconomic uncertainty. Positively, the improving order intake momentum seen in the fourth quarter 
2023 continued in the first quarter, with solid order 
intake growth on a year-on-year basis that increased our order backlog compared to the year-end position.
This gives continued confidence that Q1 will mark the low-point from a net sales perspective and that the 
business will see much stronger trends into the second half of 2024, supporting the assumption that Network Infrastructure will return to growth on a constant 
currency basis in full year 2024. IP Networks net sales declined 23% on a constant currency basis, 
primarily reflecting weakness in the Americas and APAC regions as CSP customers started the year 
cautiously. The first quarter also saw weak demand from Enterprise but this is expected to improve in the second quarter as new projects start to ramp up. Optical 
Networks net sales declined 34% on a constant 
currency basis. This is in comparison to a very strong year-ago quarter which benefited from supply chain 
recovery following component constraints in 2022.
Fixed Networks net sales declined 22% on a 
constant currency basis, in comparison to a strong year-ago quarter. The decline was mainly driven by North America. Fixed Networks is well-positioned to benefit from upcoming government-funded projects which are expected to benefit the market starting in the second half of 2024. The direct impact of these programs will likely be limited in 2024 (it is expected to be more 
meaningful in 2025/2026), however, the business is now seeing stabilization in North America and good opportunities to grow this year in other regions. This drove strong order intake in Q1. Submarine Networks net sales declined 23% on a constant currency 
basis, mainly related to project timing and also related to some disruption in the quarter due to the on-going conflict in the Red Sea region. In the quarter the 
business continued to sign sizeable orders, adding to its already significant order backlog. Gross profit and gross margin declined year-on-year due to lower net sales, and a slightly less favorable business mix. Operating profit and operating margin both declined year-on-
year, reflecting lower gross profit combined with 
slightly higher operating expenses and lower other 
operating income and expenses. Operating margin was particularly impacted by the lower net sales 
coverage of operating expenses in the quarter. 18 
April 2024 5
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	Mobile Networks EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 YoY change 
Constant currency YoY change Net sales 1 577 2 567 
(39)% (37)% Gross profit 669 867 (23)% Gross margin % 42.4% 33.8% 860bps Operating profit/(loss) (42) 137 
Operating margin % (2.7)% 5.3% (800)bps Net sales 
by region Americas 416 705 (41)% (40)% APAC 509 1 121 (55)% (52)% EMEA 652 741 (12)% (12)% Mobile 
Networks net sales declined 39% on a reported and 
37% on a constant currency basis. Net sales in APAC 
declined primarily as the pace of 5G deployments 
continued to moderate in India after significant 
investment in the first half of 2023. In the America's 
region, net sales slowed primarily due to North 
America, where demand remained weak due to current low levels of deployment activity along with lower 
market share at one North American customer. Q1 is 
currently expected to represent the low point for net 
sales in both India and North America in 2024. In EMEA, net sales in Europe declined reflecting slower 5G 
deployments amidst on-going macroeconomic 
uncertainty, offsetting growth in the Middle East and 
Africa. The first quarter saw a significant improvement in gross margin compared to the prior year. Of the 
improvement, approximately half of it was related to 
more favorable regional and product mix, while the 
remainder was due to exceptionally low indirect cost of sales in the quarter that would be expected to 
normalize in future quarters. Both operating profit and 
operating margin declined year-on-year in Q1 2024 
mainly reflecting lower net sales coverage of operating expenses, offsetting the significant improvement in 
gross margin and leading to a loss in the quarter.
Compared to the prior year, operating expenses in Q1 
decreased EUR 29 million. Cloud and Network Services EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 YoY change Constant 
currency YoY change Net sales 652 760 (14)% (13)% 
Gross profit 234 249 (6)% Gross margin % 35.9% 32.8% 310bps Operating profit/(loss) (27) (20) Operating 
margin % (4.1)% (2.6)% (150)bps Net sales by 
region Americas 243 305 (20)% (19)% APAC 146 157 
(7)% (2)% EMEA 263 297 (11)% (11)% Cloud and Network Services net sales declined 14% on a reported basis, 
and 13% on a constant currency basis reflecting 
lower net sales in each of its businesses. However, in 
Q1 2024 the business saw improving order intake and 
pipeline momentum. From a regional perspective, on a constant currency basis Cloud and Network Services saw strong declines in both the Americas region, 
particularly in North America, and in the EMEA region.
The improvement in gross margin year-on-year 
mainly reflected more supportive product and regional mix in the quarter. Both operating profit and operating margin declined year-on-year. Lower net sales 
coverage along with lower other operating income compared to the year-ago quarter more than offset the improved gross margin leading to a loss in the quarter. 18 April 2024 6
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	Nokia Technologies EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 YoY 
change Constant currency YoY change Net sales 757 
242 213% 216% Gross profit 757 242 213% Gross 
margin % 100.0% 100.0% 0bps Operating profit 658 
149 342% Operating margin % 86.9% 61.6% 2 530bps Nokia Technologies net sales increased 213% on a 
reported basis and 216% on a constant currency 
basis in the first quarter, driven mainly by the signing 
of patent license agreements with OPPO, vivo and 
another licensee. These agreements led to the 
recognition of over EUR 400 million of catch-up net 
sales in the quarter. Excluding the catch-up net sales, 
the year-on-year increase reflected the impact of 
new deals that are now contributing to net sales in the first quarter. Nokia Technologies annual net sales run-rate in the first quarter was approximately EUR 1.3 
billion. With the recent signing of these deals, Nokia 
has concluded the smartphone renewal cycle which 
began in 2021. Nokia Technologies will now enter a 
period of stability with no major smartphone licensing 
agreements expiring for a number of years. Nokia 
continues to expect to return to an annual net sales 
run-rate of EUR 1.4-1.5 billion in the mid-term, as we 
continue to grow in new focus areas such as automotive, consumer electronics, IoT and multimedia and work to sign licensing agreements with the remaining 
addressable smartphone market. The strong increase in operating profit reflected the higher level of net sales 
in the quarter. Group Common and Other EUR million 
Q1'24 Q1'23 YoY change Constant currency YoY 
change Net sales 23 48 (52) % (53) % Gross 
profit/(loss) (1) (6) Gross margin % (4.3)% (12.5)% 
820bps Operating profit/(loss) (75) (131) Operating 
margin % (326.1)% (272.9)% (5 320)bps Group 
Common and Other net sales declined 52% on a 
reported basis and 53% on a constant currency 
basis due to reduced net sales from Radio Frequency 
Systems (RFS), mainly driven by the divested 
business carved out during Q2 2023. The improvement in operating result was primarily driven by lower 
operating expenses and the divestment of RFS.
Nokia's venture fund investments had no impact in Q1 2024 compared to a loss of approximately EUR 30 million in Q1 2023. 18 April 2024 7
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	Net sales by region EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 YoY 
change Constant currency YoY change Americas 1 
204 1 898 (37)% (36)% Latin America 173 232 (25)% (25)% North America 1 031 1 666 (38)% (37)% APAC 947 1 768 (46)% (44)% Greater China 243 336 (28)% (24)% India 265 853 (69)% (68)% Rest of APAC 439 578 (24)% (19)% EMEA 2 293 1 909 20% 21% Europe 1 833 1 
473 24% 25% Middle East & Africa 460 436 6% 8% 
Submarine Networks(1) 223 285 (22)% (23)% Total 4 667 5 859 (20)% (19)% (1) Nokia provides net sales for 
the Submarine Networks business separately from 
the rest of the group to improve the usefulness of 
disclosed information by removing volatility caused 
by the specific nature of the Submarine Networks 
business. The table above provides net sales 
information for the group based on three 
geographical areas and their sub-regions, as explained above in the "Additional topics" section of this report. Reported changes are disclosed in the table above.
The regional commentary below focuses on constant 
currency results, to exclude the impact of foreign 
exchange rate fluctuations. The commentary is based on regions excluding Submarine Networks, given the 
nature of that business leads to significant regional 
volatility between periods. The net sales performance in the Americas reflected declines across all three 
networks business groups, with particular weakness in Mobile Networks, as well as IP Networks, Fixed Networks and Optical Networks within Network Infrastructure.
Within the Americas, North America witnessed weak net sales driven by low levels of deployment activity, 
particularly in Mobile Networks and Network 
Infrastructure. Net sales in APAC declined strongly in the first quarter, mainly due to Mobile Networks and 
Network Infrastructure. Within APAC, India net sales 
declined reflecting the normalization of 5G investments in the region after significant deployments in the year-ago quarter. Elsewhere in APAC, Rest of APAC and 
Greater China also declined. EMEA net sales grew in the first quarter, mainly reflecting the catch-up net 
sales in Nokia Technologies (which is entirely 
reported in Europe). Excluding Nokia Technologies, 
EMEA net sales declined primarily due to Mobile 
Networks and Cloud and Networks Services, while 
Network Infrastructure declined modestly. Within EMEA, net sales increased in Middle East & Africa, with growth in both Mobile Networks, as well as Optical Networks within Network Infrastructure. Europe net sales declined mainly in Mobile Networks, while Network Infrastructure saw mixed trends with growth in IP Networks offset by declines elsewhere. Net sales by customer type EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 YoY change Constant currency YoY change Communications service providers (CSP) 3 
224 4 725 (32)% (31)% Enterprise 443 566 (22)% (21)% Licensees 757 242 213% 216% Other(1) 243 327 (26)% (27)% Total 4 667 5 859 (20)% (19)% (1) Includes net sales of Submarine Networks which operates in a 
different market, and Radio Frequency Systems (RFS), which is being managed as a separate entity, and 
certain other items, such as eliminations of inter-segment revenues. Submarine Networks and RFS net sales also include revenue from enterprise customers and 
communications service providers. Macroeconomic 
uncertainty continued to impact CSP spending in Q1 2024, which drove a net sales decline of 31% in 
constant currency. Enterprise net sales decreased 21% in constant currency in Q1 2024. This was in 
comparison to a very strong year-ago quarter, 
particularly with webscale customers, as net sales 
from these customers remain lumpy. Order intake was strong, particularly in Cloud and Network Services, 
supported by demand for private wireless solutions.
Private wireless continued to show solid growth in the quarter and now has more than 730 customers. For a discussion on net sales to Licensees, please refer to the Nokia Technologies section of this report. The decline in ‘Other’ net sales relates to a decrease in net sales in both Submarine Networks and RFS. 18 April 2024 8
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	Q1 2024 to Q1 2023 bridge for net sales and operating profit EUR million Q1'24 Volume, price, mix and other Venture fund valuation Foreign exchange impact 
Items affecting comparability Q1'23 Net sales 4 667 (1 124) — (68) — 5 859 Operating profit 400 93 34 (9) (144) 426 Operating margin % 8.6% 7.3% The table above shows the change in net sales and operating profit compared to the year-ago quarter. Net sales 
declined from an operational standpoint as described in the prior pages and were also negatively impacted by foreign exchange rate fluctuations. Operating profit saw a positive impact from both an operational 
standpoint and from venture fund valuations, a 
negative impact from foreign exchange rate 
fluctuations, as well as a negative impact from items affecting comparability as further described below. The negative impact to operating profit seen from foreign exchange rate fluctuations is a combination of a 
negative impact related to our mix of currency 
exposures, which was partly offset by our hedging 
program. Reconciliation of reported operating profit to comparable operating profit EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 YoY change Reported operating profit 400 426 (6)% Restructuring and associated charges 104 28 
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 80 89 
Impairment and write-off of assets, net of reversals 14 (2) Costs associated with country exit — (35) Divestment of businesses — (26) Comparable operating profit 597 479 25% The comparable operating profit that Nokia discloses is intended to provide meaningful 
supplemental information to both management and investors regarding Nokia’s underlying business 
performance by excluding certain items of income and expenses that may not be indicative of Nokia’s 
business operating results. Comparable operating profit is used also in determining management remuneration.
In Q1 2024 the main adjustments related to the 
restructuring charges which are part of the on-going restructuring program (discussed later in this interim report), the amortization of acquired intangible assets which is primarily related to purchase price allocation of the Alcatel-Lucent acquisition and the impairment and write-off of assets. 18 April 2024 9
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	Cash and cash flow in Q1 2024 EUR billion EUR million, at end of period Q1'24 Q4'23 QoQ change Total cash and interest-bearing financial investments 8 907 8 514 5% 
Net cash and interest-bearing financial investments(1) 5 137 4 323 19% (1) Net cash and interest-bearing 
financial investments does not include lease liabilities.
For details, please refer to the Performance 
measures section in this report. Free cash flow 
During Q1 2024, Nokia’s free cash flow was positive EUR 955 million, mainly driven by operating profit, which benefited from catch-up net sales and cash inflows 
related to net working capital. These were somewhat offset by capital expenditures, restructuring and 
income taxes. Net cash from operating activities Net cash from operating activities was driven by: ▪ Nokia’s adjusted profit of EUR 792 million. ▪ Approximately EUR 130 million of restructuring and associated cash 
outflows, related to our current and previous cost 
savings programs. ▪ Excluding the restructuring and associated cash outflows, the increase in net cash 
related to net working capital was approximately EUR 560 million, as follows: ◦ The decrease in receivables was approximately EUR 770 million primarily driven by cash inflows related to 5G deployments in India, as well as seasonality, somewhat offset by a decrease in the balance sheet impact related to the sale of receivables in the quarter. ◦ The decrease in inventories was 
approximately EUR 30 million. ◦ The decrease in 
liabilities was approximately EUR 240 million, primarily related to accounts payable. ▪ An outflow related to cash taxes of approximately EUR 120 million. ▪ An 
outflow related to net interest of approximately EUR 30 million. Net cash from investing activities ▪ Net 
cash used in investing activities was related primarily to capital expenditures of approximately EUR 110 
million, partly offset by net cash inflows related to 
the sale of assets of approximately EUR 30 million and net cash inflows related to other non-current 
financial assets of approximately EUR 20 million. Net cash from financing activities ▪ Net cash used in 
financing activities was related primarily to dividend payments of approximately EUR 170 million, lease 
payments of approximately EUR 50 million and the 
acquisition of treasury shares of approximately EUR 10 million. Change in total cash and net cash In Q1 
2024, the approximately EUR 420 million difference between the change in total cash and net cash was primarily due to the repayment of debt, as well as the changes in the carrying amounts of certain issued 
bonds, as a result of interest rate and foreign exchange rate fluctuations. Foreign exchange rates had an 
approximately EUR 30 million negative impact on 
net cash. 18 April 2024 10
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	Sustainability At Mobile World Congress 2024, Nokia announced its commitment to reducing its total global greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions to net zero by 2040, putting Nokia ahead of the Paris Agreement goal to 
reach net zero by 2050. At the same time Nokia stated its intention to accelerate its existing interim 2030 
target by further reducing emissions across its own 
operations (Scope 1 and 2) to reach an 83% reduction in GHG emissions by 2030. This includes the complete decarbonization of Nokia’s car fleet and its facilities.
To ensure its targets are aligned with climate science, Nokia has submitted its net zero letter of commitment to the Science Based Targets initiative (SBTi) and aims to submit its net zero proposal this year for validation. As we continue to comply with all existing and upcoming 
regulations and frameworks for climate reporting, the 
net zero pathway will guide us in monitoring and 
governing our future climate performance along all the scopes of emissions. Our previous emissions targets In 2017 Nokia became one of the first 100 companies in 
any sector – and the first telecoms vendor – to have its Science Based Target (SBT) validated by the SBTi.
We recalibrated our targets in 2021 in line with a 1.5°C warming scenario, publicly committing to reduce our 
GHG emissions by 50% across our value chain 
(Scope 1, 2 and 3) by 2030 from a 2019 baseline. This 
near term 2030 target implied that Nokia would reach 
net zero by 2050. With our new announcement, we 
not only reiterate our prior commitment to cut GHG 
emissions in our value chain by 50% by 2030 from 
a 2019 baseline, but we increase our ambition by 
aiming for 83% emissions reduction in our own 
operations (Scope 1 and 2) by 2030. We also look to 
reach net zero across all scopes by 2040. How will we 
reach our net zero target? Nokia has defined a 
pathway to reach net zero in its value chain by 2040. Key levers on the pathway are shown below, with 
examples of the concrete steps we are already 
taking: Product design and innovation With 97% of 
Nokia’s emissions resulting from customers using its 
products (as opposed to emissions that come from our own operations), Nokia continues to prioritize the 
energy efficiency of its portfolio. 2023 product-related 
actions: • Achieved a 50% reduction in the average 
power consumption of 5G mMIMO Base stations by 
2023 from the 2019 baseline. • Introduced the 
Quillion chipset, which can help reduce power 
consumption for broadband access products with 
50% less power needed in fiber installations than 
previous generations. • Our FP5 network processor 
offers a 75% reduction in power consumption 
compared to its previous generation. • Our latest 
offering in optical network technology, the PSE-6s, is 
up to 40% more power efficient per bit compared to the PSE-V. Low-carbon electricity Nokia is committed to 
using 100% renewable electricity in its own facilities by 2025 and is working with its supply chain to transition to renewables. Nokia’s progress includes: • Achieved 
75% renewable electricity in its own facilities in 2023. •Nokia uses a mix of on-site solar, Power Purchase 
Agreements, renewable electricity products directly 
obtained from an energy supplier, and renewable 
electricity certificates to procure renewable electricity.
Energy and material efficiency Nokia aims to achieve 95% circularity by 2030 in relation to waste from its offices, labs, manufacturing, installation and product takeback. • In 2023, Nokia announced it would reduce packaging waste for its Fixed Networks Lightspan 
portfolio. This will lead to a 60% decrease in packaging size and a 44% reduction in the packaging’s overall weight. • Nokia continues to increase the circularity of plastics used in its products. In 2023, we started 
shipping a second customized optical network terminal (ONT) design that uses 60% post-consumer 
recycled plastic in its housing. Removing carbon Under the SBT net zero program companies need to reduce at least 90% of their emissions. The remaining 
maximum 10% of base year emissions can be 
neutralized through carbon removal. Today, 
neutralization activities under SBT can be based on removal through technology (i.e. Direct Air Capture (DAC) with geological storage) and nature-based 
solutions (i.e. reforestation). Nokia is examining credible solutions for carbon removals to support long-term net-zero targets. 18 April 2024 11
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	Additional information Cost Savings Program On 19 
October 2023, Nokia announced actions being taken across business groups to address the challenging 
market environment that the company faced. The 
company will reduce its cost base and increase 
operational efficiency while protecting its R&D capacity and commitment to technology leadership. Nokia 
targets to lower its cost base on a gross basis (i.e.
before inflation) by between EUR 800 million and EUR 1 200 million by the end of 2026 compared to 2023, assuming on-target variable pay in both periods. This represents a 10-15% reduction in personnel expenses.
The program is expected to lead to a 72 000 – 77 000 
employee organization compared to the 86 000 
employees Nokia had when the program was 
announced. The program is expected to deliver 
savings on a net basis but the magnitude will 
depend on inflation. The cost savings are expected to 
primarily be achieved in Mobile Networks, Cloud and 
Network Services and Nokia’s corporate functions. One-time restructuring charges and cash outflows of the 
program are expected to be similar to the annual cost 
savings achieved. The table below provides further 
detail on the current plans Nokia has in place in 
relation to the 2024-2026 restructuring program. The 
current plan envisages achieving gross cost savings of EUR 1 000 million within the 2024-2026 program 
although this remains subject to change depending on the evolution of end market demand. This includes the expected gross cost savings along with the associated restructuring charges and cash outflows for the 
program. Nokia expects approximately 70% of the 
savings to be achieved within operating expenses and 
30% within cost of sales. By business group, 
approximately 60% of the savings are expected to be 
achieved within Mobile Networks, 30% within Cloud and Network Services and the remaining 10% between 
Network Infrastructure and corporate center. The table also outlines expected savings and cash outflows 
related to the previous 2021-2023 program that is 
now essentially completed. In EUR million, rounded to 
the nearest EUR 50 million Actual Expected amounts 
for Cumulative expected amounts for 2024 and 
beyond 2023 2024 2025 2026 Beyond 2026 2021-
2023 Program 2024-2026 Program Total Recurring 
gross cost savings 150 500 350 150 100 100 1 000 1 100 Restructuring and associated charges related to cost 
savings programs 350 400 200 200 — — 800 800 
Restructuring and associated cash outflows 300 550 
250 150 150 150 950 1 100 18 April 2024 12
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	Significant events January – March 2024 On 25 
January 2024, Nokia announced that its Board of 
Directors is initiating a share buyback program to 
return up to EUR 600 million of cash to shareholders in tranches over a period of two years. The repurchases 
under the first phase of the program commenced on 
20 March 2024. On 8 February 2024, Nokia announced it had signed its last remaining major smartphone 
patent license agreement that remained under 
negotiation and concluded its smartphone patent 
license renewal cycle which began in 2021. In addition to license agreements signed with Apple and Samsung in 2023, and Huawei in December 2022, Nokia 
Technologies announced agreements with Honor, 
OPPO and vivo, among others at the beginning of 2024. Nokia Technologies has now entered a period of stability with no major smartphone license agreements expiring for a number of years. Refer to the Segment details 
section in this report for more information on the 
financial impact of completion of the patent license 
renewal cycle. On 28 March 2024, Nokia announced 
that its Chief People Officer, Amy Hanlon-Rodemich 
will leave and step down from its Group Leadership 
Team. A recruitment process began immediately for her successor. After 31 March 2024 On 3 April 2024, 
Nokia held its Annual General Meeting (AGM) in Helsinki.
Shareholders were also able to follow the AGM through a webcast. Approximately 78 000 shareholders 
representing approximately 3 305 million shares and 
votes were represented at the meeting. The AGM 
approved all the proposals of the Board of Directors to the AGM. Among others, the following resolutions 
were made: ▪ The financial statements were adopted, and the Board of Directors and President and CEO were discharged from liability for the financial year 2023. ▪The AGM decided that no dividend is distributed by 
a resolution of the AGM and authorized the Board to 
decide on the distribution of an aggregate maximum of EUR 0.13 per share as dividend from the retained 
earnings and/or as assets from the reserve for 
invested unrestricted equity. ▪ Timo Ahopelto, Sari 
Baldauf, Elizabeth Crain, Thomas Dannenfeldt, Lisa 
Hook, Thomas Saueressig, Søren Skou, Carla Smits-
Nusteling and Kai Öistämö were re-elected as 
members of the Board for a term ending at the close 
of the next AGM. In addition, the AGM resolved to 
elect Michael McNamara as a new member of the Board for the same term. In its assembly meeting that took 
place after the AGM, the Board re-elected Sari 
Baldauf as Chair of the Board and Søren Skou as Vice 
Chair of the Board. ▪ The Remuneration Report of the company's governing bodies was adopted and the 
Remuneration Policy of the company's governing 
bodies was supported, both in advisory resolutions. ▪Deloitte Oy was re-elected as the auditor for Nokia 
for the financial year 2025 with Authorized Public 
Accountant Jukka Vattulainen as the auditor in charge.
▪ Deloitte Oy was elected as the sustainability 
reporting assurer for the financial years 2024–2025. ▪
The Board was authorized to resolve to repurchase a 
maximum of 530 million Nokia shares and to issue a 
maximum of 530 million shares through issuance of 
shares or special rights entitling to shares in one or more issues. The authorizations are effective until 2 October 2025 and they terminated the corresponding 
authorizations granted by the AGM on 4 April 2023.
▪ The AGM resolved to amend the Articles of 
Association of the Company by updating the object of the company (Article 2), updating the government 
authority that approves auditors and adding the 
obligation to elect a sustainability reporting assurer 
(Article 7), updating the general meeting formats to 
include also the virtual general meeting (Article 9) and updating the matters that the Annual General Meeting decides on (Article 12). Shares The total number of 
Nokia shares on 31 March 2024, equaled 5 613 496 
565. On 31 March 2024, Nokia and its subsidiary 
companies held 90 652 721 Nokia shares, representing approximately 1.6% of the total number of Nokia 
shares and voting rights. 18 April 2024 13
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	Risk Factors Nokia and its businesses are exposed to a number of risks and uncertainties which include but 
are not limited to: ▪ Competitive intensity, which is 
expected to continue at a high level as some 
competitors seek to take share; ▪ Changes in 
customer network investments related to their ability to monetize the network; ▪ Our ability to ensure 
competitiveness of our product roadmaps and costs 
through additional R&D investments; ▪ Our ability to procure certain standard components and the costs 
thereof, such as semiconductors; ▪ Disturbance in the global supply chain; ▪ Impact of inflation, increased 
global macro-uncertainty, major currency fluctuations and higher interest rates; ▪ Potential economic impact and disruption of global pandemics; ▪ War or other 
geopolitical conflicts, disruptions and potential costs 
thereof; ▪ Other macroeconomic, industry and 
competitive developments; ▪ Timing and value of 
new, renewed and existing patent licensing 
agreements with licensees; ▪ Results in brand and 
technology licensing; costs to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights; on-going litigation with 
respect to licensing and regulatory landscape for 
patent licensing; ▪ The outcomes of on-going and 
potential disputes and litigation; ▪ Timing of completions and acceptances of certain projects; ▪ Our product 
and regional mix; ▪ Uncertainty in forecasting income tax expenses and cash outflows, over the long-
term, as they are also subject to possible changes due to business mix, the timing of patent licensing cash flow and changes in tax legislation, including potential tax reforms in various countries and OECD initiatives; ▪ Our ability to utilize our Finnish deferred tax assets and 
their recognition on our balance sheet; ▪ Our ability to meet our sustainability and other ESG targets, 
including our targets relating to greenhouse gas 
emissions; as well the risk factors specified under 
Forward-looking statements of this report, and our 
2023 annual report on Form 20-F published on 29 
February 2024 under Operating and financial review and prospects-Risk factors. Forward-looking statements 
Certain statements herein that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements reflect Nokia's current expectations and 
views of future developments and include statements regarding: A) expectations, plans, benefits or outlook related to our strategies, projects, product launches, 
growth management, licenses, sustainability and other ESG targets, operational key performance indicators 
and decisions on market exits; B) expectations, plans or benefits related to future performance of our 
businesses (including the expected impact, timing and duration of potential global pandemics, geopolitical 
conflicts and the general or regional macroeconomic conditions on our businesses, our supply chain, the 
timing of market changes or turning points in demand and our customers’ businesses) and any future dividends and other distributions of profit; C) expectations and 
targets regarding financial performance and results of operations, including market share, prices, net sales, income, margins, cash flows, cost savings, the timing of receivables, operating expenses, provisions, 
impairments, taxes, currency exchange rates, 
hedging, investment funds, inflation, product cost 
reductions, competitiveness, revenue generation in 
any specific region, and licensing income and 
payments; D) ability to execute, expectations, plans or benefits related to changes in organizational structure and operating model; E) impact on revenue with 
respect to litigation/renewal discussions; and F) any 
statements preceded by or including “continue”,
“believe”, “commit”, “envisage”, “estimate”, “expect”,“aim”, “influence”, “will”, “target”, “likely”, “intend”,“may”, “could”, “would”, “forecast”, “plan” or similar expressions. These forward-looking statements are 
subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, which could cause our actual results to differ materially from such 
statements. These statements are based on 
management’s best assumptions and beliefs in light of the information currently available to them. These 
forward-looking statements are only predictions based upon our current expectations and views of future 
events and developments and are subject to risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that will occur in the future. Factors, including risks and 
uncertainties that could cause these differences, include those risks and uncertainties identified in the Risk 
Factors above. 18 April 2024 14
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	Financial statement information Consolidated income statement (condensed) EUR million Reported 
Comparable Note Q1'24 Q1'23 Q1'24 Q1'23 Net sales 2, 3 4 667 5 859 4 667 5 859 Cost of sales (2 432) (3 
664) (2 397) (3 653) Gross profit 2 2 235 2 196 2 270 2 207 Research and development expenses (1 135) (1 108) (1 086) (1 093) Selling, general and administrative expenses (708) (729) (596) (642) Other operating 
income and expenses 7 68 9 7 Operating profit 2 400 426 597 479 Share of results of associates and joint ventures 1 (6) 1 (6) Financial income and expenses 51 (19) 41 (9) Profit before tax 451 401 639 464 
Income tax expense 5 (12) (111) (137) (122) Profit 
from continuing operations 439 290 501 342 
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations — (1) — —Profit for the period 438 289 501 342 Attributable to Equity holders of the parent 434 279 497 332 Non-controlling interests 4 10 4 10 Earnings per share 
attributable to equity holders of the parent Basic 
earnings per share, EUR Continuing operations 0.08 0.05 0.09 0.06 Profit for the period 0.08 0.05 0.09 
0.06 Average number of shares ('000 shares) 5 525 756 5 578 005 5 525 756 5 578 005 Diluted earnings per share, EUR Continuing operations 0.08 0.05 0.09 
0.06 Profit for the period 0.08 0.05 0.09 0.06 
Average number of shares ('000 shares) 5 564 089 5 648 995 5 564 089 5 648 995 The above condensed consolidated income statement should be read in 
conjunction with accompanying notes. 18 April 2024 15
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	Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
(condensed) EUR million Reported Q1'24 Q1'23 Profit for the period 438 289 Other comprehensive income Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 128 79 
Income tax related to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss (35) (19) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss Translation differences 177 (281) Net investment hedges (7) 75 Cash flow and 
other hedges 20 1 Financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 8 (23) Other 
changes, net 4 (3) Income tax related to items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 3 (14) Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax 298 (185) 
Total comprehensive income for the period 736 104 Attributable to: Equity holders of the parent 732 95 
Non-controlling interests 4 9 The above condensed 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
should be read in conjunction with accompanying 
notes. 18 April 2024 16
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	Consolidated statement of financial position (condensed) EUR million Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 
December 2023 ASSETS Goodwill 5 589 5 588 5 504 Other intangible assets 1 047 1 235 1 086 Property, plant and equipment 1 910 1 992 1 951 Right-of-use assets 881 926 906 Investments in associated 
companies and joint ventures 93 187 88 Non-current interest-bearing financial investments 6 509 898 715 Other non-current financial assets 6 1 092 1 062 1 100 Defined benefit pension assets 4 6 450 6 816 6 258 
Deferred tax assets 5 3 928 3 757 3 873 Other non-current receivables 231 257 213 Total non-current 
assets 21 731 22 718 21 694 Inventories 2 686 3 299 2 719 Trade receivables 6 4 325 5 298 4 921 Contract assets 953 1 229 1 136 Current income tax assets 306 201 307 Other current receivables 768 940 764 Current interest-bearing financial investments 6 1 837 2 889 1 565 Other current financial and firm commitment assets 6 428 572 441 Cash and cash equivalents 6 6 561 4 827 6 234 Total current assets 17 864 19 255 18 087 Assets held for sale 81 — 79 Total assets 39 675 41 
973 39 860 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Share capital 246 246 246 Share premium 679 544 628 Treasury shares (359) (433) (352) Translation 
differences (70) (52) (249) Fair value and other 
reserves 3 721 3 946 3 605 Reserve for invested 
unrestricted equity 15 247 15 486 15 255 Retained 
earnings 1 675 1 538 1 404 Total shareholders' equity 21 138 21 275 20 537 Non-controlling interests 95 
100 91 Total equity 21 234 21 375 20 628 Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 6, 7 3 124 3 704 3 637 Long-term lease liabilities 773 856 799 Defined benefit 
pension and post-employment liabilities 4 2 200 2 465 2 299 Deferred tax liabilities 741 338 725 Contract 
liabilities 124 131 210 Other non-current liabilities 105 94 111 Provisions 8 503 578 518 Total non-current 
liabilities 7 570 8 167 8 299 Short-term interest-bearing liabilities 6, 7 646 606 554 Short-term lease liabilities 213 176 198 Other financial and firm commitment liabilities 6 820 918 830 Contract liabilities 2 351 2 078 2 157 Current income tax liabilities 170 173 203 Trade 
payables 6 3 041 4 183 3 423 Other current liabilities 6 2 849 3 622 2 824 Provisions 8 783 676 744 Total 
current liabilities 10 872 12 431 10 933 Total 
shareholders' equity and liabilities 39 675 41 973 39 860 Shareholders' equity per share, EUR 3.83 3.82 
3.72 Number of shares (1 000 shares, excluding treasury shares) 5 522 844 5 568 357 5 525 601 The above 
condensed consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with accompanying 
notes. 18 April 2024 17

	





	[image: ]
	Consolidated statement of cash flows (condensed) EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 Cash flow from operating activities Profit for the period 438 289 Adjustments 354 456 
Depreciation and amortization 261 266 Restructuring charges 82 19 Financial income and expenses (51) 18 Income tax expense 13 112 Other 49 41 Cash 
flows from operations before changes in net working capital 792 745 Change in net working capital 427 (506) Decrease in receivables 765 33 Decrease/(increase) in inventories 32 (73) Decrease in non-interest-bearing liabilities (370) (466) Cash flows from operations 1 
219 239 Interest received 54 30 Interest paid (84) (51) Income taxes paid, net (122) (135) Net cash flows 
from operating activities 1 067 83 Cash flow from 
investing activities Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (112) (232) Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets 25 14 Proceeds from disposal of 
businesses, net of cash disposed — 22 Purchase of interest-bearing financial investments (398) (1 015) Proceeds from interest-bearing financial investments 344 1 013 Purchase of other non-current financial 
assets (8) (16) Proceeds from other non-current 
financial assets 30 4 Other 19 (17) Net cash flows 
used in investing activities (100) (227) Cash flow from financing activities Acquisition of treasury shares (8) (81) Proceeds from long-term borrowings — 495 
Repayment of long-term borrowings (375) (713) 
(Repayment of)/proceeds from short-term borrowings (36) 14 Payment of principal portion of lease 
liabilities (53) (67) Dividends paid (166) (112) Net cash flows used in financing activities (638) (464) 
Translation differences (2) (32) Net 
increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 327 (640) Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 6 234 5 467 Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 6 561 4 827 Consolidated statement of cash flows 
combines cash flows from both the continuing and 
the discontinued operations. The above condensed consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes. 18 April 
2024 18
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	Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders' equity (condensed) EUR million Share capital Share premium 
Treasury shares Translation differences Fair value and 
other reserves Reserve for invested unrestricted 
equity Retained earnings Total shareholders' equity 
Non-controlling interests Total equity 1 January 2023 
246 503 (352) 169 3 905 15 487 1 375 21 333 93 21 
426 Profit for the period — — — — — — 279 279 10 289 Other comprehensive loss — — — (221) 41 — (4) (184) 
(1) (185) Total comprehensive income — — — (221) 41
— 275 95 9 104 Share-based payments — 43 — — — —
— 43 — 43 Settlement of share-based payments — (2)
— — — 2 — — — — Acquisition of treasury shares(1) — —(81) — — (3) — (84) — (84) Disposal of subsidiaries — — — —— — — — (2) (2) Dividends — — — — — — (112) (112) —(112) Total transactions with owners — 41 (81) — — (1) 
(112) (153) (2) (155) 31 March 2023 246 544 (433) 
(52) 3 946 15 486 1 538 21 275 100 21 375 1 January 
2024 246 628 (352) (249) 3 605 15 255 1 404 20 537 
91 20 628 Profit for the period — — — — — — 434 434 4 438 Other comprehensive income — — — 179 116 — 3 
298 — 298 Total comprehensive income — — — 179 116— 437 732 4 736 Share-based payments — 54 — — — —— 54 — 54 Settlement of share-based payments — (3)
— — — 2 — (1) — (1) Acquisition of treasury shares(1) —— (8) — — (10) — (18) — (18) Dividends — — — — — — (166) (166) — (166) Total transactions with owners — 51 (8)
— — (8) (166) (131) — (131) 31 March 2024 246 679 
(359) (70) 3 721 15 247 1 675 21 138 95 21 234 (1) 
Treasury shares acquired during 2024 are acquired as 
part of the share buyback program announced on 
25 January 2024. The repurchases started on 20 March 
2024. The purpose of the repurchases is to optimize 
Nokia's capital structure through the reduction of 
capital. The repurchased shares will be cancelled.
Treasury shares acquired during 2023 were acquired as part of the share buyback program announced on 3 February 2022. The repurchased shares were 
cancelled on 30 November 2023. The repurchases are funded using funds in the reserve for invested 
unrestricted equity and the repurchases will reduce 
total unrestricted equity. The above condensed 
consolidated statement of changes in shareholders' equity should be read in conjunction with accompanying 
notes. 18 April 2024 19
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	Notes to Financial statements 1. GENERAL 
INFORMATION This unaudited and condensed 
consolidated financial statement information of Nokia has been prepared in accordance with IAS 34, Interim 
Financial Reporting, and it should be read in 
conjunction with the annual consolidated financial 
statements for 2023 prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as published by the IASB and 
adopted by the EU. The same accounting policies, 
methods of computation and applications of judgment are followed in this financial statement information as was followed in the annual consolidated financial 
statements for 2023 except for the following: 
Starting from the first quarter of 2024 Nokia provides regional net sales information for the Nokia group and its reportable segments based on three geographical areas: 1) Americas, 2) APAC, and 3) EMEA. Net sales 
information for the group is further divided into sub-
regions as follows: Americas consists of North America and Latin America, APAC consists of Greater China, 
India and Rest of APAC (formerly reported as Asia Pacific region), and EMEA consists of Europe and Middle East & Africa. Net sales for the Submarine Networks 
business are provided separately from the 
geographical regions. The purpose of the change is to increase transparency of net sales information for the reportable segments. The comparative regional net 
sales information for the reportable segments for 
each quarter and full year 2023 is provided in Note 3.
Net sales. Percentages and figures presented herein may include rounding differences and therefore may not add up precisely to the totals presented and may vary from previously published financial information. This financial report was authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 April 2024. Net sales and 
operating profit of the Nokia group, particularly in 
Network Infrastructure, Mobile Networks and Cloud and Network Services segments, are subject to seasonal fluctuations being generally highest in the fourth 
quarter and lowest in the first quarter of the year. This is mainly due to the seasonality in the spending cycles of communications service providers. Nokia Shanghai Bell In 2017, Nokia and China Huaxin Post & 
Telecommunication Economy Development Center 
(China Huaxin) commenced operations of the joint 
venture Nokia Shanghai Bell (NSB). The contractual arrangement provides China Huaxin with the right to fully transfer its ownership interest in NSB to Nokia and Nokia with the right to purchase China Huaxin’s 
ownership interest in NSB in exchange for a future cash settlement. To reflect this, Nokia derecognized the 
non-controlling interest balance related to NSB and 
recognized a financial liability based on the estimated future cash settlement to acquire China Huaxin’s 
ownership interest. Any changes in the estimated future cash settlement are recorded in financial income and expense. In 2023, the contractual arrangement was extended until 30 June 2024. If it expires unexercised, Nokia will derecognize the financial liability and record non-controlling interest equal to its share of NSB’s net assets with any difference recorded within shareholders’equity. TD Tech Nokia holds a 51% ownership interest in TD Tech Holding Limited (“TD Tech HK”), a Hong 
Kong based joint venture holding company which Nokia has accounted for as an investment in associate. In 2023, TD Tech HK has entered into an agreement to divest the entire business of the joint venture through the sale of TD Tech HK’s operating subsidiaries to a consortium consisting of Huawei Technologies, 
Chengdu High-tech Investment Group and other buyers.
The closing of the transaction is conditional upon 
receiving regulatory approvals for the transaction and 
is expected in 2024. Following the transaction, Nokia 
will exit from its shareholding in TD Tech HK. Nokia 
expects to record a gain on the contemplated 
transactions. At 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of Nokia’s investment in TD Tech HK is included in 
assets held for sale in the statement of financial position.
Device Management and Service Management 
Platform businesses In 2023, Nokia signed an 
agreement to sell its Device Management and Service Management Platform businesses, which are part of 
Cloud and Network Services, to Lumine Group Inc. The deal is valued at EUR 185 million, which includes a 
contingent consideration of up to EUR 35 million based on the performance of the business during the first 
year following close. The deal closed on 1 April 2024. At 31 March 2024, the assets of Device Management and Service Management Platform businesses are 
included in assets held for sale in the statement of financial position. Comparable and constant currency measures Nokia presents financial information on a reported, 
comparable and constant currency basis. Comparable measures presented in this document exclude intangible asset amortization and other purchase price fair 
value adjustments, goodwill impairments, 
restructuring related charges and certain other items 
affecting comparability. In order to allow full visibility on determining comparable results, information on items affecting comparability is presented separately for 
each of the components of profit or loss. Constant 
currency reporting provides additional information on 
change in financial measures on a constant currency 
basis in order to better reflect the underlying business performance. Therefore, change in financial measures at constant currency excludes the impact of changes in 
exchange rates in comparison to euro, our reporting 
currency. As comparable or constant currency 
financial measures are not defined in IFRS they may not be directly comparable with similarly titled measures 
used by other companies, including those in the same industry. The primary rationale for presenting these 
measures is that the management uses these 
measures in assessing the financial performance of 
Nokia and believes that these measures provide 
meaningful supplemental information on the 
underlying business performance of Nokia. These 
financial measures should not be considered in 
isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial information presented in compliance with IFRS. For further details 
on performance measures used by Nokia and 
reconciliations to the closest IFRS-defined measures, 
refer to the Performance measures section 
accompanying this consolidated financial statement 
information. 18 April 2024 20
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	Foreign exchange rates Nokia’s net sales are derived from various countries and invoiced in various 
currencies. Therefore, our business and results from operations are exposed to changes in foreign exchange rates between the euro, our reporting currency, and other currencies, such as the US dollar, the Indian 
rupee and the Chinese yuan. To mitigate the impact of changes in exchange rates on our results, we hedge operative forecasted net foreign exchange 
exposures, typically within a 12-month horizon, and apply hedge accounting in the majority of cases. The below table shows the exposure to different currencies for 
net sales and total costs. Q1'24 Q1'23 Q4'23 Net sales Total costs Net sales Total costs Net sales Total costs EUR ~20% ~35% ~25% ~25% ~25% ~30% USD ~60% ~40% ~50% ~50% ~50% ~45% INR ~0% ~5% ~5% ~5% ~0% ~5% CNY ~5% ~5% ~5% ~5% ~5% 
~5% Other ~15% ~15% ~15% ~15% ~20% ~15% Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% End of Q1'24 
balance sheet rate 1 EUR = 1.08 USD, end of Q1'23 
balance sheet rate 1 EUR = 1.09 USD and end of Q4'23 balance sheet rate 1 EUR = 1.11 USD New and amended standards and interpretations New standards and 
amendments to existing standards that became 
effective on 1 January 2024, did not have a material 
impact on Nokia's consolidated financial statements.
New standards and amendments to existing standards issued by the IASB that are not yet effective are not expected to have a material impact on Nokia's 
consolidated financial statements when adopted. 2.
SEGMENT INFORMATION Nokia has four operating and reportable segments for the financial reporting 
purposes: (1) Network Infrastructure, (2) Mobile 
Networks, (3) Cloud and Network Services and (4) Nokia Technologies. Nokia also presents segment-level 
information for Group Common and Other. In addition, Nokia provides net sales disclosure for the following business divisions within the Network Infrastructure segment: (i) IP Networks, (ii) Optical Networks, (iii) 
Fixed Networks and (iv) Submarine Networks. For 
detailed segment descriptions, please refer to Note 2.2. Segment Information, in the annual consolidated financial statements for 2023. Accounting policies of the segments are the same as those for the group, 
except that items affecting comparability are not 
allocated to the segments. For more information on comparable measures and items affecting 
comparability, refer to Note 1. General information, and to the Performance Measures section accompanying this consolidated financial statement information. Inter-segment revenues and transfers are accounted for as if the revenues were to third parties, that is, at current market prices. In the first quarter of 2024 Nokia 
Technologies signed a number of smartphone patent license agreements which had expired in earlier periods.
This led to the recognition of EUR 0.4 billion of revenue related to the periods of non-payment. Q1'24 Network Infrastructure(1) Mobile Networks Cloud and Network Services Nokia Technologies Group Common and Other Eliminations and unallocated EUR million items Nokia Group Net sales 1 662 1 577 652 757 23 (4) 4 667 of which to other segments — 1 — — 1 (4) — Gross 
profit/(loss) 611 669 234 757 (1) (35) 2 235 Gross 
margin % 36.8% 42.4% 35.9% 100.0% (4.3)% 47.9% Research and development expenses (311) (543) 
(141) (61) (30) (49) (1 135) Selling, general and 
administrative expenses (217) (173) (120) (34) (52) (112) (708) Other operating income and expenses (1) 4 1 (3) 8 (2) 7 Operating profit/(loss) 82 (42) (27) 658 (75) (197) 400 Operating margin % 4.9% (2.7)% 
(4.1)% 86.9% (326.1)% 8.6% Share of results of 
associates and joint ventures — — 1 (1) 0 — 1 Financial income and expenses 51 Profit before tax 451 
Depreciation and amortization (60) (90) (19) (9) (4) (79) (261) (1) Includes IP Networks net sales of EUR 594 million, Optical Networks net sales of EUR 344 million, Fixed Networks net sales of EUR 500 million and 
Submarine Networks net sales of EUR 223 million. 18 April 2024 21
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	Q1'23 Network Infrastructure(1) Mobile Networks Cloud and Network Services Nokia Technologies Group 
Common and Other Eliminations and unallocated EUR 
million items Nokia Group Net sales 2 248 2 567 760 242 48 (6) 5 859 of which to other segments 1 2 — — 3 (6) —Gross profit/(loss) 855 867 249 242 (6) (11) 2 196 Gross margin % 38.0% 33.8% 32.8% 100.0% (12.5)% 37.5% 
Research and development expenses (318) (535) 
(151) (57) (32) (16) (1 108) Selling, general and 
administrative expenses (206) (210) (130) (33) (63) (87) (729) Other operating income and expenses 13 14 
13 (3) (29) 61 68 Operating profit/(loss) 344 137 (20) 
149 (131) (53) 426 Operating margin % 15.3% 5.3% 
(2.6)% 61.6% (272.9)% 7.3% Share of results of 
associates and joint ventures — (18) 1 11 — — (6) 
Financial income and expenses (19) Profit before tax 
401 Depreciation and amortization (55) (88) (23) (10) 
(1) (89) (266) (1) Includes IP Networks net sales of EUR 781 million, Optical Networks net sales of EUR 533 
million, Fixed Networks net sales of EUR 650 million 
and Submarine Networks net sales of EUR 285 million.
Material reconciling items between the group 
operating profit and total segment operating profit 
EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 Operating profit for the group 400 426 Restructuring and associated charges 104 28 Amortization of acquired intangible assets 80 89 
Impairment and write-off of assets, net of reversals 14 (2) Costs associated with country exit — (35) Divestment of businesses — (26) Total segment operating profit 
597 479 3. NET SALES Management has determined that Nokia’s geographic areas are considered as the 
primary determinants to depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are 
affected by economic factors. Nokia’s primary 
customer base consists of companies that operate on 
a country-specific or a regional basis. Although Nokia’s technology cycle is similar around the world, different 
countries and regions are inherently in a different 
stage of that cycle, often influenced by macroeconomic conditions specific to those countries and regions. In 
addition to net sales to external customers by region, 
the chief operating decision maker reviews segment 
net sales by aggregated regions and net sales by 
customer type disclosed below. Each reportable 
segment, as described in Note 2. Segment information, consists of customers that operate in all geographic 
areas. No reportable segment has a specific revenue 
concentration in any geographic area other than 
Nokia Technologies, which is included within Europe.
Group net sales by region EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 
Americas 1 204 1 898 Latin America 173 232 North 
America 1 031 1 666 APAC 947 1 768 Greater China 243 336 India 265 853 Rest of APAC 439 578 EMEA 2 293 1 909 Europe 1 833 1 473 Middle East & Africa 460 436 
Submarine Networks(1) 223 285 Total 4 667 5 859 (1) Nokia provides net sales for the Submarine 
Networks business separately from the rest of the 
group to improve the usefulness of disclosed 
information by removing volatility caused by the 
specific nature of the Submarine Networks business.
18 April 2024 22
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	Segment net sales by region EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 
Network Infrastructure 1 662 2 248 Americas 545 865 
APAC 286 484 EMEA 608 614 Submarine Networks 223 285 Mobile Networks 1 577 2 567 Americas 416 705 
APAC 509 1 121 EMEA 652 741 Cloud and Network 
Services 652 760 Americas 243 305 APAC 146 157 EMEA 263 297 Nokia Technologies 757 242 Group Common 
and Other(1) 19 42 Total 4 667 5 859 (1) Includes 
eliminations of inter-segment revenues. Starting from 
the first quarter of 2024 Nokia provides regional net 
sales information also for its reportable segments, refer to Note 1. General information. The following table 
presents comparative segment net sales by region 
information for each quarter and full year 2023: EUR 
million Q1'23 Q2'23 Q3'23 Q4'23 Q1-Q4'23 Network 
Infrastructure 2 248 1 978 1 807 2 003 8 037 Americas 864 653 559 738 2 814 APAC 484 405 380 310 1 580 
EMEA 614 648 595 665 2 522 Submarine Networks 285 272 273 291 1 120 Mobile Networks 2 567 2 623 2 157 2 450 9 797 Americas 704 582 658 674 2 618 APAC 1 
120 1 344 825 894 4 183 EMEA 741 697 673 883 2 994 Cloud and Network Services 760 742 742 977 3 220 
Americas 305 275 300 426 1 306 APAC 157 158 146 187 649 EMEA 297 308 295 364 1 265 Nokia Technologies 
242 334 258 251 1 085 Group Common and Other(1) 
42 33 19 26 119 Total 5 859 5 710 4 982 5 707 22 
258 (1) Includes eliminations of inter-segment revenues.
Net sales by customer type EUR million Q1'24 Q1'23 
Communications service providers (CSP) 3 224 4 725 
Enterprise 443 566 Licensees 757 242 Other(1) 243 327 Total 4 667 5 859 (1) Includes net sales of Submarine Networks which operates in a different market, and 
Radio Frequency Systems (RFS), which is being 
managed as a separate entity, and certain other items, such as eliminations of inter-segment revenues.
Submarine Networks and RFS net sales also include revenue from communications service providers and enterprise customers. 18 April 2024 23
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	4. PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS Nokia operates several post-employment plans in 
various countries including both defined contribution 
and defined benefit plans. Defined benefit plans 
include pension plans and other post-employment 
benefit plans, providing retirement healthcare benefits and life insurance coverage. Nokia remeasured 95% of its defined benefit obligations and 98% of the plan 
assets at 31 March 2024. Nokia's pension and other 
post-employment plans in the United States have 
been remeasured using updated valuations from an 
external actuary, and the main pension plans outside of the United States have been remeasured based on 
updated asset valuations and changes in the discount 
rates during the reporting period. The impact of not 
remeasuring other pension and post-employment 
obligations is considered not material. At 31 March 
2024, the weighted average discount rates used in 
remeasurement of the most significant plans were as 
follows (comparatives at 31 December 2023): US 
Pension 4.97% (4.67%), US OPEB 4.97% (4.68%), 
Germany 3.34% (3.17%) and UK 4.80% (4.51%). The 
funded status of Nokia’s defined benefit plans (before 
the effect of the asset ceiling) increased from 124.0%, or EUR 4 046 million, at 31 December 2023 to 126.1% or EUR 4 332 million, at 31 March 2024. During the 
quarter the global defined benefit plan asset portfolio 
was invested approximately 72% in fixed income, 6% 
in equities and 22% in other asset classes, mainly 
private equity and real estate. Changes in pension and post-employment net asset/(liability) 31 March 2024 
31 March 2023 31 December 2023 EUR million 
Pensions(1) US OPEB Total Pensions(1) US OPEB 
Total Pensions(1) US OPEB Total Net asset/(liability) 
recognized 1 January 4 755 (796) 3 959 5 273 (978) 4 
295 5 273 (978) 4 295 Recognized in income statement 11 (9) 2 18 (12) 6 77 (46) 31 Recognized in other 
comprehensive income 60 68 128 96 (17) 79 (409) 
66 (343) Contributions and benefits paid 72 — 72 60 3 63 136 7 143 Exchange differences and other 
movements(2) 110 (21) 89 (108) 16 (92) (322) 155 
(167) Net asset/(liability) recognized at the end of the 
period 5 008 (758) 4 250 5 339 (988) 4 351 4 755 (796) 3 959 (1) Includes pensions, retirement indemnities 
and other post-employment plans. (2) Includes Section 420 transfers, medicare subsidies, and other transfers.
Funded status EUR million 31 March 2024 31 
December 2023 30 September 2023 30 June 2023 
31 March 2023 Defined benefit obligation (16 590) (16 868) (16 632) (17 712) (18 054) Fair value of plan 
assets 20 922 20 914 20 818 21 993 22 495 Funded 
status 4 332 4 046 4 186 4 281 4 441 Effect of asset ceiling (82) (87) (91) (101) (90) Net asset recognized at the end of the period 4 250 3 959 4 095 4 180 4 351 5.
DEFERRED TAXES Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax 
losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences can be utilized in the relevant 
jurisdictions. At 31 March 2024, Nokia has recognized deferred tax assets of EUR 3.9 billion (EUR 3.9 billion at 31 December 2023). In addition, at 31 March 2024, Nokia has unrecognized deferred tax assets of 
approximately EUR 5 billion (EUR 5 billion at 31 
December 2023), the majority of which relate to France (approximately EUR 4 billion). These deferred tax 
assets have not been recognized due to uncertainty regarding their utilization. A significant portion of the French unrecognized deferred tax assets are indefinite in nature and available against future French tax 
liabilities, subject to a limitation of 50% of annual 
taxable profits. Nokia continually evaluates the 
probability of utilizing its deferred tax assets and 
considers both positive and negative evidence in its assessment. 18 April 2024 24
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	6. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Financial 
assets and liabilities measured at fair value are 
categorized based on the availability of observable 
inputs used to measure their fair value. Three 
hierarchical levels are based on an increasing amount of judgment associated with the inputs used to derive fair valuation for these assets and liabilities, Level 1 
being market values for exchange traded products, 
Level 2 being primarily based on publicly available 
market information and Level 3 requiring most 
management judgment. At the end of each reporting 
period, Nokia categorizes its financial assets and liabilities to the appropriate level of fair value hierarchy. Items 
carried at fair value in the following table are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. For more 
information about the valuation methods and 
principles, refer to Note 5.2. Financial assets and 
liabilities, and Note 5.3. Derivative and firm 
commitment assets and liabilities in the annual 
consolidated financial statements for 2023. 31 March 
2024 Carrying amounts Fair value Amortized cost Fair value through profit or loss Fair value through other 
comprehensive income(1) EUR million Level 1 Level 2 
Level 3 Level 2 Total Total Non-current interest-
bearing financial investments 509 — — — — 509 512 
Investments in venture funds — 3 — 785 — 788 788 Other non-current financial assets 160 — 98 — 46 304 304 
Other current financial assets 252 — — — 19 271 271 Derivative assets — — 112 — — 112 112 Trade receivables— — — — 4 325 4 325 4 325 Current interest-bearing 
financial investments 813 — 1 024 — — 1 837 1 831 Cash and cash equivalents 5 341 — 1 220 — — 6 561 6 561 Total financial assets 7 075 3 2 454 785 4 390 14 707 14 704 Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 3 124 — — — —3 124 3 145 Other long-term financial liabilities 31 — —29 — 60 60 Short-term interest-bearing liabilities 646 —— — — 646 646 Other short-term financial liabilities 74 —— 463 — 537 537 Derivative liabilities — — 268 — — 268 268 Discounts without performance obligations 333 —— — — 333 333 Trade payables 3 041 — — — — 3 041 3 041 Total financial liabilities 7 249 — 268 492 — 8 009 8 030 31 December 2023 Carrying amounts Fair value 
Amortized cost Fair value through profit or loss Fair value through other comprehensive income(1) EUR million 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 Total Total Non-
current interest-bearing financial investments 715 — — —— 715 717 Investments in venture funds — 5 — 779 — 784 784 Other non-current financial assets 161 — 96 — 59 316 316 Other current financial assets 263 — — — 22 285 285 Derivative assets — — 134 — — 134 134 Trade 
receivables — — — — 4 921 4 921 4 921 Current interest-bearing financial investments 874 — 691 — — 1 565 1 565 Cash and cash equivalents 4 791 — 1 443 — — 6 234 6 234 Total financial assets 6 804 5 2 364 779 5 002 14 954 14 956 Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 3 637— — — — 3 637 3 614 Other long-term financial liabilities 33 — — 28 — 61 61 Short-term interest-bearing 
liabilities 554 — — — — 554 555 Other short-term financial liabilities 65 — — 471 — 536 536 Derivative liabilities — —286 — — 286 286 Discounts without performance 
obligations 404 — — — — 404 404 Trade payables 3 423 —— — — 3 423 3 423 Total financial liabilities 8 116 — 286 499 — 8 901 8 879 (1) No financial instruments 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income are categorized in fair value hierarchy level 1 
or level 3. Lease liabilities are not included in the fair 
value of financial instruments. Level 3 Financial assets include a large number of investments in unlisted 
equities and unlisted venture funds, including 
investments managed by NGP Capital specializing in 
growth-stage investing. The fair value of level 3 
investments is determined using one or more valuation techniques with unobservable inputs, where the use of the market approach generally consists of using 
comparable market transactions, while the use of the 
income approach generally consists of calculating the net present value of expected future cash flows. Level 3 Financial liabilities consist primarily of a 
conditional obligation to China Huaxin related to Nokia Shanghai Bell. 18 April 2024 25
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	Changes in level 3 financial assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value: EUR million Financial Assets Financial Liabilities 1 January 2024 779 (499) Net gains in income statement 6 7 Additions 6 — Deductions (2)— Transfer out of level 3 (4) — 31 March 2024 785 
(492) The gains and losses from venture fund and 
similar investments categorized in level 3 are included in other operating income and expenses. The gains and losses from other level 3 financial assets and liabilities are recorded in financial income and expenses. A net gain of EUR 14 million related to level 3 financial 
instruments held at 31 March 2024 was included in the profit and loss during 2024 (net loss of EUR 42 million related to level 3 financial instruments held at 31 
December 2023 during 2023). 7. INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES Carrying amount (EUR million) 
Issuer/borrower Instrument Currency Nominal (million) Final maturity 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 
December 2023 Nokia Corporation 2.00% Senior Notes EUR 378 3/2024 — 366 375 Nokia Corporation EIB R&D Loan EUR 500 2/2025 500 500 500 Nokia Corporation NIB R&D Loan(1) EUR 167 5/2025 167 250 167 Nokia 
Corporation 2.375% Senior Notes EUR 292 5/2025 288 286 289 Nokia Corporation 2.00% Senior Notes EUR 630 3/2026 610 599 614 Nokia Corporation 4.375% Senior Notes USD 500 6/2027 433 436 430 Nokia of America Corporation 6.50% Senior Notes USD 74 1/2028 69 68 67 Nokia Corporation 3.125% Senior Notes EUR 500 5/2028 475 463 479 Nokia of America Corporation 6.45% Senior Notes USD 206 3/2029 191 191 187 Nokia 
Corporation 4.375% Sustainability-linked Senior 
Notes(2) EUR 500 8/2031 505 493 510 Nokia Corporation 6.625% Senior Notes USD 500 5/2039 456 487 463 Nokia Corporation and various subsidiaries Other liabilities 76 171 110 Total 3 770 4 310 4 191 (1) The remaining loan from the Nordic Investment Bank (NIB) is 
repayable in two equal annual installments in 2024 and 2025. (2) The bond has a one-time redemption 
premium at maturity of EUR 4 million in case Nokia 
does not meet its commitment to reduce its greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (in tCO2 e) across its value chain (Scope 1, 2, and 3) by 50% between 2019 and 2030.
This target is one of Nokia’s key sustainability targets 
and has been selected to be the Sustainability 
Performance Target in Nokia’s Sustainable Finance 
Framework that enables the issuance of sustainability-linked financing instruments. Nokia has a committed 
Revolving Credit Facility with nominal value of EUR 1 500 million maturing in June 2026, except for EUR 88 
million portion maturing in June 2024. For information 
about Nokia's uncommitted funding programs, refer to Note 5.4. Financial risk management in the annual 
consolidated financial statements for 2023. All 
borrowings and credit facilities are senior unsecured 
and have no financial covenants. 18 April 2024 26
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	8. PROVISIONS EUR million Restructuring Warranty 
Litigation and Environmental Project losses Other(1) 
Total At 1 January 2024 255 200 251 110 446 1 262 
Charged to income statement Additions 82 102 12 3 
40 239 Reversals — (13) (1) — (31) (45) Total charged to income statement 82 89 11 3 9 194 Utilized during 
period(2) (122) (29) (6) (2) (19) (178) Translation 
differences and other 1 — 5 — 2 8 At 31 March 2024 
216 260 261 111 438 1 286 Non-current 67 20 158 
92 167 503 Current 149 240 103 19 271 783 (1) Other provisions include provisions for various obligations 
such as material liability, indirect tax provisions, 
divestment-related provisions, employee-related 
provisions other than restructuring provisions and 
asset retirement obligations. (2) The utilization of 
restructuring provision includes items transferred to 
accrued expenses, of which EUR 70 million remained in accrued expenses at 31 March 2024. 9. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND LEGAL PROCEEDINGS EUR million 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 December 2023 
Contingent liabilities on behalf of group companies 
Guarantees issued by financial institutions Commercial guarantees 1 429 1 212 1 477 Non-commercial 
guarantees 523 531 615 Corporate guarantees 
Commercial guarantees 304 497 325 Non-commercial guarantees 33 31 35 Financing commitments 
Customer finance commitments 2 17 5 Venture fund 
commitments 384 419 381 The amounts in the table 
above represent the maximum principal amount of 
commitments and contingencies, and these amounts 
do not reflect management's expected outcomes.
Litigations and proceedings Significant changes to information about litigation and proceedings presented in Nokia's annual consolidated financial statements for 2023: Continental In 2019, Continental Automotive Systems (Continental) brought breach of FRAND (fair, reasonable and non-discriminatory terms) and 
antitrust claims against Nokia and others. The antitrust claims were dismissed. In 2022, this decision became final after Continental lost on appeal and 
reconsideration requests. Continental also brought breach of contract and FRAND-related claims against Nokia in 2021. In the beginning of 2023, Nokia’s motion to dismiss was granted in part and denied in part, and the action is proceeding on the remaining claims at this time. Amazon In 2023, Nokia commenced patent 
infringement proceedings against Amazon in Germany, the European Unified Patent Court, India, the United Kingdom, the United States (International Trade 
Commission/District Court) and Brazil. Across these actions, more than 30 patents are in suit, covering video-related technologies implemented in Amazon’s services and devices. HP In 2023, Nokia commenced patent infringement proceedings against HP in the United States (International Trade Commission/District Court), Brazil, Germany and the European Unified 
Patent Court. Across these actions, there are 14 
patents in suit, covering video coding technologies implemented in HP’s products. Verifone In the first quarter of 2024, Nokia commenced patent 
infringement proceedings against Verifone in Germany and the European Unified Patent Court. Across these actions, there are five patents in suit, covering cellular technologies implemented in Verifone’s devices. 18 April 2024 27
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	Performance measures Certain financial measures 
presented in this interim report are not measures of 
financial performance, financial position or cash flows defined in IFRS, and therefore may not be directly 
comparable with financial measures used by other 
companies, including those in the same industry. The primary rationale for presenting these measures is 
that the management uses these measures in 
assessing the financial performance of Nokia and 
believes that these measures provide meaningful 
supplemental information on the underlying 
business performance. These financial measures should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial information presented in compliance with IFRS. Beginning with its Annual Report 2023 Nokia 
changed how it defines its Free cash flow measure to better align it with common practice and Non-GAAP 
reporting guidelines. Previously Nokia defined Free 
cash flow as Net cash flows from operating activities –purchases of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets (capital expenditures) + proceeds 
from sale of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets – purchase of non-current financial 
investments + proceeds from sale of non-current 
financial investments. The new definition is Net cash 
flows from operating activities – purchases of 
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
(capital expenditures). The comparative amounts for 
Free cash flow presented in this report have been 
revised accordingly. The below tables provide 
summarized information on the performance 
measures included in this interim report as well as 
reconciliations of the performance measures to the 
amounts presented in the financial statements.
Performance measure Definition Purpose Comparable measures Comparable measures exclude intangible asset amortization and other purchase price fair 
value adjustments, goodwill impairments, 
restructuring related charges and certain other items affecting comparability. Reconciliation of reported and comparable consolidated statement of income is 
presented below. We believe that our comparable 
results provide meaningful supplemental information to both management and investors regarding Nokia’s underlying business performance by excluding 
certain items of income and expenses that may not be indicative of Nokia’s business operating results.
Comparable operating profit is used also in determining management remuneration. Constant currency net 
sales / Net sales adjusted for currency fluctuations 
When net sales are reported on a constant 
currency basis / adjusted for currency fluctuations, 
exchange rates used to translate the amounts in 
local currencies to euro, our reporting currency, are the average actual periodic exchange rates for the 
comparative financial period. Therefore, the constant currency net sales / net sales adjusted for currency 
fluctuations exclude the impact of changes in exchange rates during the current period in comparison to euro.
We provide additional information on net sales on a constant currency basis / adjusted for currency 
fluctuations in order to better reflect the underlying business performance. Comparable return on invested capital (ROIC) Comparable operating profit after tax, last four quarters / Invested capital, average of last five quarters’ ending balances. Calculation of 
comparable return on invested capital is presented below. Comparable return on invested capital is used to measure how efficiently Nokia uses its capital to generate profits from its operations. Comparable 
operating profit after tax Comparable operating profit- (comparable operating profit x (- comparable income tax expense / comparable profit before tax)) 
Comparable operating profit after tax indicates the profitability of Nokia's underlying business 
operations after deducting the income tax impact. We use comparable operating profit after tax to calculate comparable return on invested capital. Invested 
capital Total equity + total interest-bearing liabilities -total cash and interest-bearing financial investments Invested capital indicates the book value of capital raised from equity and debt instrument holders less cash and liquid assets held by Nokia. We use invested capital to calculate comparable return on invested 
capital. Total cash and interest-bearing financial 
investments ("Total cash") Total cash and interest-bearing financial investments consist of cash and cash equivalents and current interest-bearing financial 
investments and non-current interest-bearing financial investments. Total cash and interest-bearing financial investments is used to indicate funds available to Nokia to run its current and invest in future business activities as well as provide return for security holders. Net cash and interest-bearing financial investments ("Net cash") Net cash and interest-bearing financial investments equals total cash and interest-bearing financial 
investments less long-term and short-term interest-bearing liabilities. Lease liabilities are not included in interest-bearing liabilities. Reconciliation of net cash and interest-bearing financial investments to the 
amounts in the consolidated statement of financial position is presented below. Net cash and interest-bearing financial investments is used to indicate Nokia's liquidity position after cash required to settle the 
interest-bearing liabilities. Free cash flow Net cash 
flows from operating activities – purchases of 
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (capital expenditures). Free cash flow is the cash that Nokia generates after investments in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, and we believe it provides meaningful supplemental information as it represents the cash available to service and repay 
interest-bearing financial liabilities, including lease 
liabilities, make investments to grow business and 
distribute funds to shareholders. It is a measure of 
cash generation, working capital efficiency and capital discipline of the business. Capital expenditure 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets (excluding assets acquired under 
business combinations). We use capital expenditure to describe investments in profit generating activities in the future. Recurring/One-time measures Recurring measures, such as recurring net sales, are based on revenues that are likely to continue in the future.
Recurring measures exclude e.g. the impact of catch-up net sales relating to prior periods. One-time measures, such as one-time net sales, reflect the revenues that are not likely to continue in the future. We use 
recurring/one-time measures to improve comparability between financial periods. Adjusted profit/(loss) 
Adjusted profit/(loss) equals the cash from 
operations before changes in net working capital 
subtotal in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
We use adjusted profit/(loss) to provide a structured presentation when describing the cash flows. Recurring annual cost savings Reduction in cost of sales and operating expenses resulting from the cost savings program and the impact of which is considered 
recurring in nature. We use recurring annual cost 
savings measure to monitor the progress of our cost savings program established after the Alcatel-Lucent transaction against plan. Restructuring and 
associated charges, liabilities and cash outflows 
Charges, liabilities and cash outflows related to 
activities that either meet the strict definition of 
restructuring under IFRS or are closely associated with such activities. We use restructuring and associated charges, liabilities and cash outflows to measure the progress of our integration and transformation 
activities. 18 April 2024 28
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	Comparable to reported reconciliation Q1'24 Cost of 
sales Research and development expenses Selling, 
general and administrative expenses Other operating income and expenses Operating profit Share of results of associates and joint ventures Financial income and expenses Income tax (expense)/ benefit Profit/(loss) 
from continuing EUR million operations Comparable (2 397) (1 086) (596) 9 597 1 41 (137) 501 Restructuring and associated charges (31) (36) (35) (2) (104) — — 20 (83) Amortization of acquired intangible assets — (5) (75) — (80) — — 19 (61) Impairment and write-off of 
assets, net of reversals (4) (8) (2) — (14) — — 3 (11) 
Change in financial liability to acquire NSB non-
controlling interest — — — — — — 10 — 10 Changes in the recognition of deferred tax assets — — — — — — —83 83 Items affecting comparability (35) (49) (112) (2) (197) — 10 125 (62) Reported (2 432) (1 135) (708) 7 400 1 51 (12) 439 Q1'23 Cost of sales Research and 
development expenses Selling, general and 
administrative expenses Other operating income and expenses Operating profit Share of results of 
associates and joint ventures Financial income and 
expenses Income tax (expense)/ benefit Profit from 
continuing EUR million operations Comparable (3 653) (1 093) (642) 7 479 (6) (9) (122) 342 Amortization of 
acquired intangible assets — (13) (76) — (89) — — 20 (69) Costs associated with country exit — — — 35 35 — —(7) 28 Restructuring and associated charges (12) (4) 
(12) (1) (28) — — 4 (24) Divestment of businesses — — —26 26 — — (5) 21 Impairment and write-off of assets, net of reversals 1 1 — — 2 — — — 2 Change in financial liability to acquire NSB non-controlling interest — — — —— — (10) — (10) Items affecting comparability (11) (16) (87) 61 (53) — (10) 11 (52) Reported (3 664) (1 108) 
(729) 68 426 (6) (19) (111) 290 Net cash and interest-bearing financial investments EUR million 31 March 
2024 31 December 2023 30 September 2023 30 
June 2023 31 March 2023 Non-current interest-
bearing financial investments 509 715 794 865 898 
Current interest-bearing financial investments 1 837 1 565 1 698 1 860 2 889 Cash and cash equivalents 6 
561 6 234 4 605 5 106 4 827 Total cash and interest-bearing financial investments 8 907 8 514 7 097 7 831 8 614 Long-term interest-bearing liabilities(1) 3 124 3 637 3 562 3 584 3 704 Short-term interest-bearing 
liabilities(1) 646 554 575 587 606 Total interest-bearing liabilities 3 770 4 191 4 137 4 171 4 310 Net cash and interest-bearing financial investments 5 137 4 323 2 960 3 660 4 304 (1) Lease liabilities are not included in 
interest-bearing liabilities Free cash flow EUR million 
Q1'24 Q1'23 Net cash flows from operating activities 
1 067 83 Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets (112) (232) Free cash flow 955 
(149) Reconciliation of the revised free cash flow to the free cash flow as defined earlier for each quarter and full year 2023: EUR million Q1'23 Q2'23 Q3'23 Q4'23 
Q1-Q4'23 Net cash flows from operating activities 
83 (333) (303) 1 870 1 317 Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (232) (127) (144) (149) (652) Free cash flow (revised definition) (149) 
(460) (447) 1 721 665 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 14 84 45 
46 189 Purchase of other non-current financial 
investments (16) (25) (16) (26) (83) Proceeds from sale of other non-current financial investments 4 21 6 3 34 
Free cash flow (old definition) (147) (380) (412) 1 744 805 18 April 2024 29
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	Comparable return on invested capital (ROIC) Q1'24 EUR million Rolling four quarters Q1'24 Q4'23 Q3'23 Q2'23 Comparable operating profit 2 493 597 846 424 626 Comparable profit before tax 2 403 639 818 384 562 Comparable income tax expense (620) (137) (250) (85) (148) Comparable operating profit after tax 1 847 469 587 330 461 EUR million Average 31 March 2024 31 December 2023 30 September 2023 30 June 2023 31 March 2023 Total equity 21 173 21 234 20 628 21 351 21 276 21 375 Total interest-bearing liabilities 4 116 3 770 4 191 4 137 4 171 4 310 Total cash and 
interest-bearing financial investments 8 193 8 907 8 514 7 097 7 831 8 614 Invested capital 17 096 16 097 
16 305 18 391 17 616 17 071 Comparable ROIC 10.8% Q4'23 EUR million Rolling four quarters Q4'23 Q3'23 Q2'23 Q1'23 Comparable operating profit 2 375 846 424 626 479 Comparable profit before tax 2 228 818 384 562 464 Comparable income tax expense (605) (250) (85) (148) (122) Comparable operating profit after tax 1 731 587 330 461 353 EUR million Average 31 
December 2023 30 September 2023 30 June 2023 
31 March 2023 31 December 2022 Total equity 21 211 20 628 21 351 21 276 21 375 21 426 Total interest-bearing liabilities 4 257 4 191 4 137 4 171 4 310 4 477 Total cash and interest-bearing financial investments 8 260 8 514 7 097 7 831 8 614 9 244 Invested capital 17 208 16 305 18 391 17 616 17 071 16 659 
Comparable ROIC 10.1% Q1'23 EUR million Rolling four quarters Q1'23 Q4'22 Q3'22 Q2'22 Comparable operating profit 3 006 479 1 154 658 714 Comparable profit 
before tax 3 005 464 1 194 667 681 Comparable income tax expense (598) (122) (265) (116) (95) Comparable operating profit after tax 2 411 354 899 544 614 EUR million Average 31 March 2023 31 December 2022 30 September 2022 30 June 2022 31 March 2022 Total 
equity 19 941 21 375 21 426 19 797 19 026 18 083 
Total interest-bearing liabilities 4 527 4 310 4 477 4 596 4 637 4 615 Total cash and interest-bearing financial investments 9 162 8 614 9 244 9 251 9 183 9 519 
Invested capital 15 306 17 071 16 659 15 143 14 
480 13 179 Comparable ROIC 15.8% 18 April 2024 
30
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	This financial report was approved by the Board of 
Directors on 18 April 2024. Media and Investor 
Contacts: Communications, tel. +358 10 448 4900 
email: press.services@nokia.com Investor Relations, tel.
+358 4080 3 4080 email: 
investor.relations@nokia.com • Nokia plans to publish its second quarter and half year 2024 results on 18 July 2024. • Nokia plans to publish its third quarter and January-September 2024 results on 17 October 2024.
18 April 2024 31
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Interim Report for Q1 2024

Strong cash flow and improving orders despite market weakness

* s expected, a slow start to 2024 with net sales deciining 19% y-0-y in constant currency (-20% reported) in Q1.
* Environment stil challenging but order trends continue to improve year-on-year, particularly in Network Infrastructure.

* Comparable gross marginin Q1 increased by 1 090bps y-o0-y to 48.6% (reported increased 1040bps to 47.9%). Strong
contribution from Nokia Technologies which benefited from significant catch-up net sales, in addition to significant
improvements in Mobile Networks due in part to regional and product mix.

* Q1 comparable operating margin increased 460bps y-0-y to 12.8% (reported up 130bps to 8.6%), as licensing catch-up
net sales more than made up for low net sales coverage of operating expenses impacting other business groups.

* Q1 comparable diuted EPS of EUR 0.09; reported diluted EPS of EUR 0.08.
* Qi free cash fiow almost EUR Tbn, net cash balance EUR 5.1bn.

* Nokia's fullyear 2024 outiook is unchanged. Nokia currently expects comparable operating profit of between EUR 23
bilion to 2.9 billon and free cash flow conversion from comparable operating profit of between 30% and 60%.
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Pekka Lundmark

_Pres\dent and CEO

As expected, the ongoing market weakness drove a 19% year-
on-year constant currency decline in net sales in the first
quarter. However, we have seen continued improvement in
order intake, meaning we remain confident in a stronger
second half and achieving our full year outiook. Driven by the
patent licensing deals signed in Nokia Technologies, we
achieved a comparable operating margin of 12.8%1n Q1,
compared to 8.2% the year before. We also generated almost
EUR 1 billion in free cash flow in the quarter, which s a very
strong performance.

'm pleased that the improving order intake we started to see
in Network Infrastructure at the end of last year continued in
Q1 with year-on-year growth in order intake and drove a
further increase in our backiog. The outlook for Fixed Networks
for 2024 has improved which is an important signal as this
market often recovers first. However, we believe the recovery
in Optical Networks may take somewhat longer. While we are
conscious of the broader economic environment, considering
the on-going order intake strength, we expect Network
Infrastructure will return to net sales growth for fullyear 2024
with a stronger second half performance.

Mobile Networks was impacted by particularly low levels of
spending in North America and India, which led to a Q1 net
sales deciine of 37%in constant currency. A slower pace of
spendingin India was anticipated following the rapid 5G
deployment seen in H1 2023, and our expectations for India
for the fullyear remain unchanged. Globally, we expect Q1 to
mark the low point in demand with activity then progressively
picking up through the reminder of 2024 consistent with
more normal seasonality. We saw significant strength in gross

margin at 429% in the quarter, which s a solid improvement
from the 34%in the year-ago quarter. Approximately half of
this improvement was related to improving regional and
product mix, while the remainder was due to exceptionaly low
indirect cost of sales.

Cloud and Network Services saw a soft start to the year which
was related to the challenging spending environment. However,
we are seeing improving order intake and pipeline momenturn
Importantly, we are aiso making good progress with our
Network as Code platform. This platform enables operators to
monetize their 5G investments, creating new revenue streams
by offering developers advanced AP access to the network. We
now have a total of 11 operators signed up to the platform
with many more in active discussions.

Nokia Technologies had a very strong start to the year as we
concluded a number of outstanding licensing deals in the
quarter. This meant that our annual licensing net sales run-rate
improved from the EUR 0.9 to 1.0 billion we had in Q4 to
approximately EUR 1.3 billon in Q1. In addition to the run-rate
increase, we benefited from more than EUR 400 milion of
catch-up et sales in the quarter. We have now concluded our
smartphone licensing renewal cycle with no major renewals due
for 2 number of years. This means Nokia Technologies has
entered a period of stability. The business will now focus its
resources on expanding in new growth areas with the next goal
to increase our annual icensing net sales run-rate to EUR 1.4
t0 1.5 bilion n the mid-term.

We have been executing quickly on the operating model
changes we announced back in October along with our cost
savings roadmap. These actions, combined with our
expectation for improved net sales growth in the second half of
the year, supported by our order backiog, mean we are solidly
on track to achieve our full year comparable operating profit
outlook of EUR 2.3 to 2.9 bilon and free cash flow conversion
of 30% to 60%.

Shareholder distribution
Dividend

Under the authorization by the Annual General Meeting held on
3 April 2024, the Board of Directors may resolve on the
distribution of an aggregate maximum of EUR 0.13 per share to
be paid in respect of financial year 2023. The authorization will
be used to distribute dividend and/or assets from the reserve
for invested unrestricted equity in four instalments during the
authorization period, in connection with the quarterly resuts,
unless the Board decides otherwise for a justified reason.

On 18 April 2024, the Board resolved to distribute a dividend
of EUR 0.04 per share. The dividend record date is on 23 April
2024 and the dividend will be paid on 3 May 2024. The actual
dividend payment date outside Finland will be determined by
the practices of the intermediary banks transferring the
dividend payments

Following this announced distribution, the Board's remaining
distribution authorization is 2 maximur of EUR 0.08 per share.

18 April 2024

Share buyback program

In January 2024, Nokia's Board of Directors initiated a share.
buyback prograrh to repurchase shares to return up to EUR
600 million of cash to shareholders in tranches over a period of
two years. The first EUR 300 million phase of the share buyback
program started in March 2024 and it will end at the latest by
18 December 2024. Under this phase, Nokia has by 31 March
2024 repurchased 3 290 248 of its own shares at an average
price per share of approximately EUR 3.27.




image5.png
NO<IA

Outlook

Full Year 2024
Comparatie operating profit” EUR 2.3 billon to EUR 23 billon
Treecash o™ 30% 1060% converion from compaable

61 lese refr o Peformance e sectonin s reprt o ol xlaationof b hsetr e defined.

The outlook, long:term targets and allof the underlying outlook assumptions described below are forward-looking statements
subject to a number of risks and uncertainties as described or referred to in the Risk Factors section later in this report. Along

with Nokia's officil outlook targets provided above, below are outlook assumptions by business group that support the group
level outlook.

Nokla business group assumptions (full year 2024)

Network Infastructure: 2Ht048% 5% t0145%
Mobile Networks 5%t 10% 10%1040%
‘Gloud and Network Services: 2hto+3% 60%t09.0%

Nokia provides the following approximate outlook assumptions for additional items concerning 2024

Full year 2024 Comment

Nokia continues to expect weak profit generation i the first haf folowed by a
Sigrificanty sronger 2 iy Networknfacircture, Hobile Networks and i and
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Nokia expects cash generation in Nokia Technologies to be EUR 700 milion below

atleast rating proft n 2024 du 1o prepayments receved in 2023 From 2025 orwiards
Nokia Technologies operating profit EURT.4biion  Nokia expects greater alignment between cash generation and operating profitin
Noki Technologes.
Thisincudes centralfunction costs wich re expected t be lrgely sableat
approimatly U 200 milonan a nrease h estment i ong-ermresearch to
Group Comeren s Other operating EUR350 millon  approximately ELR 150 millon.Group Common and Other il aso sccount fo any
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hisso ar
EUROto positve  Reflectngimproved cash generationn 0 andnteret raes remaiing igherthan
Comparabl inancialncome and experses  ELR00 millon 5 expected (nreasing rest icome) we now expactan mivoved nancil
updatel a0 expense resut.
Comparabl ncome taxrate 2%
[T —
Captal Expendires EUR600 millon

2026 targets

Nokia's current targets for 2026 are outlined below. Nokia sees further opporturnities to increase margins beyond 2026 and
believes an operating margin of 14% remains achievable over the longer term.

Netsales Grow faster than the market
Comparable operating margin” 21%
Free cash flow” 55%t0 85% conversionfrom comparable operating proft
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‘The comparable operating margin target for Nokia group s built on the following assumptions by business group for 2026;

Network nrastruciure 2. 15 operating margn
Vobie Networks 6-9%operatingmargn

Goud andNetwork Serices 7- 0% cperaing margn

Nokia Technologies ‘Operating profit more than EUR 11 billon
Groupcommon and ther Aoprosimatel EUR 300 mion of cperating epenses

18 April 2024 3
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Financial Results
Q12024 compared to Q12023

Net sales
In Q1 2024, reported net sales decreased 20% and were
negatively impacted by foreign exchange rate fluctuations
along with the following drivers.

On a constant currency basis, Nokia's net sales decreased 19%
year-on-year, with deciines across all network businesses.
Nokia Technologies increased by 216% benefiting from catch-
up net sales related to licensing agreements made with
smartphone vendors. Network Infrastructure declined 26%
compared to a strong Q1 2023 and as it continued to
‘experience weaker demand largely related to macroeconomic
uncertainty. Mobile Networks decreased 37% largely driven by
India as 5G deployments continued to moderate after
significant investment in the first half of 2023 and by North
America, where demand remained weak. Additionally, Cloud and
Network Services net sales decreased 13%

Gross margin

Reported gross margin increased 1 040 basis points to 47.9%
in Q1 2024 and comparable gross margin increased 1090 basis
points to 48.6%. Gross margin performance mainly reflected
the benefits of the catch-up net sales in Nokia Technologies
and strong improvements in Mobile Networks gross marginin
part due to more favorable regional and product mix.

Operating profit and margin

Reported operating profit in Q1 2024 decreased 6% and was
EUR 400 millon, or 8.6% of net sales, up from 7.3% in the
year-ago quarter. Comparable operating profit increased 25%
to EUR 597 millon, while comparable operating margin was
12.8%, up from 8.2% in the year-2go quarter. This increase
was mainly driven by the over EUR 400 millon of catch-up net
sales in Nokia Technologies, while operating expenses declined,
but at a slower pace than net sales.

Nokia's venture fund investments had no impact in Q1 2024
compared to a loss of approximately EUR 30 million in Q1

2023. The impact of hedging in Q1 2024 was positive EUR 10
milion, similar to Q1 2023

1n Q1 2024, the difference between reported and comparable
operating profit was primarily related to restructuring and
associated charges, the amortization of acquired intangible
assets and the impairment and write-off of assets. In Q1 2023,
the difference between reported and comparable operating
profit was related to the amortization of acquired intangible.
assets and restructuring and associated charges. This was.
partialy offset by the partial reversal of a provision associated
with 2 country exit and the divestment of businesses

Profit for the period

Reported net profit in Q1 2024 was EUR 438 millon, compared
to net profit of EUR 289 milion in Q1 2023. Comparable net
profit in Q1 2024 was EUR 501 millon, compared to EUR 362
millon in Q1 2023. The increase in comparable net profit was
primarily driven by the increase in comparable operating profit
and a net positive fluctuation in financial income and expenses,
partially offset by higher income tax expense. The positive
movement i financialincome and expenses mainly reflected
favorable foreign exchange rates.

Apart from the items affecting comparability included in
operating profit (and their associated tax effects), the
difference between reported and comparable net profit in Q1
2024 was mainly due to a change in the recognition of deferred
tax assets. There were no significant items beyond those
impacting the difference in operating profit that impacted the
comparability between reported and comparable net profitin
Q12023

Eornings per share

Reported diluted EPS was EUR 0.08n Q1 2024, compared to
EUR 0,05 in Q1 2023. Comparable diluted EPS was EUR 0.09 in
Q1 2024 compared to EUR0.06 in Q1 2023,

‘Comparable return onInvested Capital (ROIC

Q1 2024 comparable ROIC was 10.8%, compared to 15.8% in
Q1 2023. The decrease reflected higher average invested
capita for the rolling four quarters, combined with lower
operating profit after tax for the rolling four quarters. The
higher average invested capital reflected growth in average
total equity and a decrease in average total cash and interest-
bearing financial investments, partialy offset by a decrease in
average total interest-bearing liabilties.

Cash performance

During Q1 2024, net cash increased EUR 814 million, resulting
in an end-of-quarter net cash balance of EUR 5 137 milon,
benefiting in part from catch-up payments related to licensing
deals signed in Q1 2024 Total cash increased EUR 393 millon
sequentially to EUR 8 907 million. Free cash flow was positive
EUR 955 millon in Q1 2024,

Additional topics

Change in presentation of regional financil information
Starting from Q1 2024, Nokia provides regional net sales
information for the Nokia group and its reportable segments
based on three geographical areas: 1) Americas, 2) APAC, and 3]
EMEA. Net sales information for the group is further divided
into sub-regions as follows: Americas consists of North America
and Latin America, APAC consists of Greater China, India and
Rest of APAC (formerly reported s Asia Pacific region), and
EMEA consists of Europe and Midde East & Africa. Net sales for
the Submarine Networks business are provided separately from
the geographical regions. The purpose of the change is to
increase transparency of net sales information for the
reportable segments. The comparative regiona net sales
information for each quarter and full year 2023 i provided in
the financial statement information section Note 3. Net sales.

18 April 2024

Change in definition of free cash flow
Beginning with its Annual Report 2023, Nokia changed how it
defines its free cash flow measure to better align it with
common practice and Non-GAAP reporting guidelines
Previously, Nokia defined free cash flow as net cash flows from
operating activities - purchases of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets (capital expenditures) +
proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets - purchase of non-current financial
investments + proceeds from sale of non-current financial
investments. The new definition is net cash flows from
operating activities - purchases of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets (capital expenditures). The
comparative amounts for free cash flow presented in this
report have been revised accordingly.
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Segment Details
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Network Infrastructure net sales declined 26% on both a
reported basis and constant currency basis in the first quarter,
in comparison to a strong year-2go quarter.

As expected, the demand environment remained weak in the
first quarter. The business continued to experience headwinds
which were largely related to macroeconormic uncertainty.
Positively, the improving order intake momentur seen in the
fourth quarter 2023 continued in the first quarter, with solid
order intake growth on a year-on-year basis that increased our
order backlog compared to the year-end position. This gives
continued confidence that Q1 wil mark the low-point from a
net sales perspective and that the business will see much
stronger trends into the second half of 2024, supporting the
assumption that Network Infrastructure willreturn to growth
ona constant currency basis in full year 2024

1P Networks et sales declined 23% on a constant currency
basis, primarily reflecting weakness in the Americas and APAC
regions as CSP customers started the year cautiously. The first
quarter also saw weak demand from Enterprise but this is
expected to improve in the second quarter as new projects
start to ramp up.

Optical Networks net sales declined 34% on  constant
currency basis. This isin comparison to a very strong year-ago
quarter which benefited from supply chain recovery following
component constraints in 2022

18 April 2024

Fixed Networks net sales declined 229% on a constant currency.
basis,in comparison to a strong year-ago quarter. The decline
was mainly driven by North America. Fixed Networks is well-
positioned to benefit from upcoming government-funded
projects which are expected to benefit the market starting in
the second half of 2024. The direct impact of these programs
will lkely be limited in 2024 (it is expected to be more
meaningfulin 2025/2026), however, the business is now seeing
stabilization in North America and good opportunities to grow
this year in other regions. This drove strong order intake in Q1.
‘Submarine Networks net sales declined 23% on a constant
currency basis, mainly related to project timing and also related
to some disruption in the quarter due to the on-going conflict
in the Red Sea region. In the quarter the business continued to
sign sizeable orders, adding to its already significant order
backiog.

Gross profit and gross margin declined year-on-year due to
lower net sales, and a slightly less favorable business mix
‘Operating profit 2nd operating margin both declined year-on-
year, reflecting lower gross profit combined with slightly higher
operating expenses and lower other operating income and

expenses. Operating margin was particularly impacted by the
lower net sales coverage of operating expenses in the quarter.
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Mobile Networks net sales declined 39% on a reported and
37% on a constant currency bass.

Net sales in APAC declined primarily as the pace of 5G
deployments continued to moderate inndia after significant
investment in the first half of 2023. In the America's region, net
sales slowed primarily due to North America, where demand
remained weak due to current low levels of deployment activity
along with lower market share at one North American

customer. Q1 is currently expected to represent the low point
for net sales in both India and North America in 2024. In EMEA,
net sales in Europe declined reflecting slower 5G depioyments
amidst on-going macroeconomic uncertainty, offsetting
‘growth in the Middle East and Africa

Cloud and Network Services

‘The first quarter saw a significant improvement in gross.
margin compared to the prior year. Of the improvement,
approximately half of it was related to more favorable regional
and product mix, while the remainder was due to exceptionally
low indirect cost of sales in the quarter that would be expected
to normalize i future quarters.

Both operating profit and operating margin declined year-on-
year in Q1 2024 mainly reflecting lower net sales coverage of
operating expenses, ofsetting the significant improvement in
gross margin and leading to a loss in the quarter. Compared to
the prior year, operating expenses n Q1 decreased EUR 29
millon.
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Cloud and Network Services net sales declined 14% on a
reported basis, and 13% on a constant currency basis
reflecting lower net sales in each of its businesses. However, in
Q1 2024 the business saw improving order intake 2nd pipeline
momentum.

From a regional perspective, on a constant currency basis
Cloud and Network Services saw strong declines in both the
Americas region, particularly in North America, and in the EMEA
region.

18 April 2024

‘The improvement in gross margin year-on-year mainly
reflected more supportive product and regional mix in the

quarter
Both operating profit and operating margin declined year-on-
year. Lower net sales coverage along with lower other
operating income compared to the year-ago quarter more than
offset the improved gross margin leading to a loss in the
quarter.
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Nokia Technologies net sales increased 213% on a reported
basis and 216% on a constant currency basis in the first
quarter, driven mainly by the signing of patent license
agreements with OPPO, vivo and another licensee. These
agreements led to the recognition of over EUR 400 millon of
catch-up net sales in the quarter. Excluding the catch-up net
sales, the year-on-year increase reflected the impact of new
deals that are now contributing to net sales in the fist quarter.

Nokia Technologies annual net sales run-rate in the first
quarter was approximately EUR 1.3 billon.

With the recent signing of these deals, Nokia has concluded the
smartphone renewal cycle which began in 2021. Nokia

Group Common and Other

Technologies will now enter a period of stability with no major
smartphone licensing agreements expiring for a number of
years. Nokia continues to expect to return to an annual net
sales run-rate of EUR 1.4-1.5 bion in the mid-term, as we
continue to grow in new focus areas such as automotive,
consumer electronics, IoT and multimedia and work to sign
licensing agreements with the remaining addressable
smartphone market

The strong increase in operating profit reflected the higher
level of net sales in the quarter.
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Group Common and Other net sales declined 52% on a
reported basis and 53% on a constant currency basis due to
reduced net sales from Radio Frequency Systems (RFS), mainly
driven by the divested business carved out during Q2 2023

18 April 2024

The improvement in operating result was primarily driven by
lower operating expenses and the divestment of RFS. Nokia's
venture fund investments had no impact in Q1 2024 compared
t02 loss of approximately EUR 30 millon in Q1 2023
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The table above provides net sales information for the group
based on three geographical areas and their sub-regions, as
explained above in the "Additional topics" section of this
report. Reported changes are disclosed in the table above. The
regional commentary below focuses on constant currency
results, to exclude the impact of foreign exchange rate
fluctuations. The commentary is based on regions excluding
Submarine Networks, given the nature of that business leads to
significant regional volatilty between periods.

The net sales performance in the Americas reflected declines
across all three networks business groups, with particular
weakness in Mobile Networks, as well as [P Networks, Fixed
Networks and Optical Networks within Network Infrastructure.
Within the Americas, North America witnessed weak net sales
driven by low levels of deployment activity, particularly in
Mobile Networks and Network Infrastructure.

Net sales by customer type

Net sales in APAC declined strongly in the first quarter, mainly
due to Mobile Networks and Network Infrastructure. Within
APAC, India net sales declined reflecting the normalization of
5G investments in the region after significant deployments in
the year-ago quarter. Elsewhere in APAC, Rest of APAC and
Greater China also declined.

EMEA net sales grew in the first quarter, mainly reflecting the
catch-up net sales in Nokia Technologies (which is entirely
reported in Europe). Excluding Nokia Technologies, EMEA net
sales declined primarily due to Mobile Networks and Cloud and
Networks Services, while Network Infrastructure declined
modestly. Within EMEA, net sales increased in Middle East &
Africa, with growth in both Mobill Networks, as well as Optical
Networks within Network Infrastructure. Europe net sales
declined mainly in Mobile Networks, while Network
Infrastructure saw mixed trends with growth in IP Networks
offset by declines elsewhere.
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Macroeconomic uncertainty continued to impact CSP spending
in Q1 2024, which drove 2 net sales decline of 319 in constant
currency.

Enterprise net sales decreased 21%in constant currency in Q1
2026. This was in comparison to a very strong year-ago
quarter, particularly with webscale customers, as net sales from
these clstomers remain lumpy. Order intake was strong,
particularly in Cloud and Network Services, supported by

18 April 2024

demand for private wireless solutions. Private wireless
continued to show solid growth in the quarter and now has
more than 730 customers.

For a discussion on net sales to Licensees, please refer to the
Nokia Technologies section of this report.

The dedline in ‘Other’ net sales relates to a decrease in net
sales in both Submarine Networks and RFS.
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The table above shows the change in net sales and operating
profit compared to the year-ago quarter. Net sales declined
from an operational standpoint as described in the prior pages
and were also negatively impacted by foreign exchange rate
fluctuations. Operating profit saw a positive impact from both
n operational standpoint and from venture fund valuations, a
negative impact from foreign exchange rate fluctuations, as

well as a negative impact from items affecting comparabilty as
further described below. The negative impact to operating
profit seen from foreign exchange rate fluctuations is a
combination of a negative impact related to our mix of

currency exposures, which was partly offset by our hedging
program.

Reconciliation of reported operating profit to comparable operating profit

EUR million

Qrze s YoY change
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The comparable operating profit that Nokia discloses is
intended to provide meaningful supplemental information to
both management and investors regarding Nokia's underlying
business performance by excluding certain items of income
and expenses that may not be indicative of Nokia's business
‘operating results. Comparable operating profit is used also in
determining management remuneration

18 April 2024

1n Q1 2024 the main adjustments related to the restructuring
charges which are part of the on-going restructuring program
(discussed later in ths interim report), the amortization of
acquired intangible assets which is primarily related to
purchase price allocation of the Alcatel-Lucent acquisition and
the impairment and write-off of assets.
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Cash and cash flow in Q1 2024
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Free cash flow
During Q1 2024, Nokia's free cash flow was positive EUR 955
milion, mainly driven by operating profit, which benefited from
catch-Up net sales and cash inflows related to net working
capital. These were somewhat of fset by capital expenditures,
restructuring and income taxes.
Net cash from operating octiities
Net cash from operating activities was driven by:
« Nokia's adjusted profit of EUR 792 million
+ Approximately EUR 130 million of restructuring and
associated cash outflows, related to our current and previous
cost savings prograrms.
+ Excluding the restructuring and associated cash outflows, the
increase in net cash related to net working capital was.
approximtely EUR 560 millon,as follows:
‘The decrease in receivables was approximately EUR 770
million primarily driven by cash inflows related to 5G
deployments in India, as well as seasonaity, somewhat
offset by 2 decrease in the balance sheet impact related
to the sale of receivables i the quarter

- The decrease in inventories was approximately EUR 30
milion.

- The decrease in labilties was approximately EUR 240
million, primrily related to accounts payable.

+ An outflow related to cash taxes of approximately EUR 120
millon.

+ Anoutflow related to net interest of approximately EUR 30
millon.

18 April 2024

Net cash from investing activites

+ Net cash used in investing activities was related primarily to
capital expenditures of approximately EUR 110 million, partly
offset by net cash inflows related to the sale of assets of
approximately EUR 30 million and net cash inflows related to
other non-current financial assets of approximately EUR 20
milion.

Net cash from financing activites

+ Net cash used in financing activities was related primarily to
dividend payments of approximately EUR 170 millon, lease
payments of approximately EUR 50 million and the
acquisition of treasury shares of approximately EUR 10
milion.

Change in totalcash and net cash

In Q1 2024, the approximately EUR 420 millon difference

between the change in total cash and net cash was primerily

due to the repayment of deb, as well as the changes in the

carrying amounts of certain issued bonds, as 2 result of

interest rate and foreign exchange rate fluctuations.

Foreign exchange rates had an approximately EUR 30 milion

negative impact on net cash.

10




image13.png
NO<IA

At Mobile World Congress 2024, Nokia announced its commitment to reducing its total global greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions to
net zero by 2040, putting Nokia ahead of the Paris Agreement goal to reach net zero by 2050,

At the same time Nokia stated its intention to accelerate is existing interim 2030 target by further reducing emissions across its
‘own operations (Scope 1and 2) to reach an 83% reduction in GHG emissions by 2030 This includes the complete decarbonization

Sustainability

of Nokia's car fleet and its facilties.

To ensure it targets are aligned with dlimate science, Nokia has submitted its net zero letter of commitment to the Science
Based Targets initiative (SBTi and aims to submit its net zero proposal this year for validation. AS we continue to comply with all
existing and upcoming regulations and frameworks for climate reporting, the net zero pathway will uide us in monitoring and
‘governing our future climate performance along allthe scopes of emissions.

Our previous emissions targets

In 2017 Nokia became one of the first 100 companies in any
sector—and the first telecoms vendor ~ to have its Science
Based Target (SBT) validated by the SBTi. We recalibrated our
targets in 2021 in line with a 1.5°C warming scenario, publicly
committing to reduce our GHG emissions by 509% across our
value chain (Scope 1, 2 and 3) by 2030 from a 2019 baseline.
“This near term 2030 target implied that Nokia would reach net
zer0 by 2050,

With our new announcement, we not only reiterate our prior
commitment to cut GHG emissions in our value chain by 50%
by 2030 from a 2019 baseline, but we increase our ambition by
aiming for 83% emissions reduction in our own operations
(Scope 1 and 2) by 2030. We also look to reach net zero across.
allscopes by 2040.

How will we reach our net zero target?

Nokia has defined a pathway to reach net zero inits value chain

by 2040, Key levers on the pathway are shown below, with

‘examples of the concrete steps we are already taking:

Product design and innovation

With 7% of Nokia's emissions resulting from customers using

its products (as opposed to emissions that come from our own

‘operations), Nokia continues to prioritize the energy efficiency

ofits portfolio.

2023 product-related actions:

« Achieved a 50% reduction in the average power consumption
of 5G mMIMO Base stations by 2023 from the 2019 baseline.

« Introduced the Quilion chipset, which can help reduce power
consumption for broadband access products with 50% less
power needed in fiber installations than previous
generations.

« Our FPS network processor offers a 75% reduction in power
consumption compared to its previous generation.

« Ourlatest offering in optical network technology, the PSE-6s,
is up to 40% more power efficient per bit compared to the
PSE-V.
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Low-carbon electriity

Nokia is committed to using 100% renewable electricty inits

own facilties by 2025 and is working with ts supply chain to

transition to renewables. Nokia's progress includes:

« Achieved 75% renewable electricity inits own facilties in
2023

= Nokia uses a mix of on-site solar, Power Purchase
Agreements, renewable electricity products directly obtained
from an energy supplier, and renewable electricity.
certificates to procure renewable electricity.

Energy and materia eficency

Nokia aims to achieve 95% circularity by 2030 n relation to

waste fromits offices, labs, manufacturing, installation and

product takeback

= In 2023, Nokia announced it would reduce packaging waste
for its Fixed Networks Lightspan portfolio. This willlead to a
60% decrease in packaging size and a 44% reduction in the
packaging's overall weight.

= Nokia continues to increase the circularity of plastics used in
its products. In 2023, we started shipping a second
customized optical network terminal (ONT) design that uses
60% post-consumer recycled plastic inits housing.

carbon

Under the SBT et zero program companies need to reduce at

least 0% of their emissions. The remaining maximum 10% of

base year emissions can be neutralized through carbon

removal. Today, neutralization activities under SBT can be

based on removal through technology (i. Direct Air Capture

(DAC) with geological storage) and nature-based solutions (ie.

reforestation). Nokia is examining credible solutions for carbon

removals to support long-term net-zero targets.

"
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Additional information

Cost Savings Program

0n 19 October 2023, Nokia announced actions being taken
across business groups to address the challenging market
environment that the company faced. The company willreduce
its cost base and increase operationai efficiency while
protecting its R&D capacity and commitment to technology
leadership.

Nokia targets to lower its cost base on a gross basis i. before
inflation) by between EUR 800 million and EUR 1 200 milon by
the end of 2026 compared to 2023, assurming on-target
variable pay in both periods. This represents a 10-15%
reduction in personnel expenses. The program s expected to
lead to a 72 000 - 77 000 employee organization compared to
the 86 000 employees Nokia had when the program was.
announced

The program is expected to deliver savings on a net basis but
the magnitude will depend on inflation. The cost savings are
‘expected to primarily be achieved in Mobile Networks, Cloud
and Network Services and Nokia's corporate functions. One-
time restructuring charges and cash outflows of the program
are expected to be similar to the annual cost savings achieved.

The table below provides further detail on the current plans
Nokia has in place in relation to the 2024-2026 restructuring
program. The current plan envisages achieving gross cost
Savings of EUR 1000 million within the 2024-3026 program
although this remains subject to change depending on the
evolution of end market demand. This includes the expected
gr0ss cost savings along with the associated restructuring
charges and cash outflows for the program. Nokia expects
approximately 70% of the savings to be achieved within
operating expenses and 30% within cost of sales. By business
group, approximately 60% of the savings are expected to be
achieved within Mobile Networks, 30% within Cloud and
Network Services and the remaining 10% between Network
Infrastructure and corporate center.

The table also outlines expected savings and cash outflows
related to the previous 2021-2023 program that is now
essentially completed.

Actual Expacted amounts for Cumulative expected amounts for 2024 and beyond
In EUR millon,rounded to the nearest. o

EUR 50 millon 2023|200 2005 2006 "Yond| [2021-2023Program 2024206 Program L,
Recuring gross costsavigs W[ S0 30 B0 100) 700 7000 1100)
Restructuring and associated charges

related o ot Savings programs. mo| 40 20 w0 — - 500 500
Restructuing and associated cash

outflons 0| so w0 w0 w0 150 %0 1100
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Significant events

January - March 2026

0n 25 January 2024, Nokia announced that its Board of

Directors i initiating a share buyback program to return up to

EUR 600 milion of cash to shareholders in tranches over a

period of two years. The repurchases under the first phase of

the program commenced on 20 March 2024

On 8 February 2024, Nokia announced it had signed its last

remaining major smértphone patent license agreement that

remained under negotiation and concluded its smartphone
patent license renewal cycle which began in 2021. In addition to

ficense agreements signed with Apple and Samsung in 2023,

and Huave in December 2022, Nokia Technologies announced

agreements with Honor, OPPO and vivo, among others at the

beginning of 2024. Nokia Technologies has now entered a

period of stabilty with no major smartphone license

agreements expiring for  number of years. Refer to the

Segment details section in ths report for more information on

the financial impact of completion of the patent icense.

renewal cycle.

On 28 March 2024, Nokia announced that its Chief People

Officer, Amy Hanlon-Rodemich wil leave and step down from

its Group Leadership Team. A recruitment process began

immediately for her successor.

After 31 March 2024

On 3 April 2024, Nokia held its Annual General Meeting (AGM) in

Helsinki. Shareholders were also able to follow the AGM through

2 webcast. Approximately 78 000 shareholders representing

approximately 3 305 million shares and votes were.

represented at the meeting. The AGM approved all the
proposals of the Board of Directors to the AGM. Among others,
the following resolutions were made:

+ The financial statements were adopted, and the Board of
Directors and President and CEQ were discharged from
liability for the financial year 2023.

+ The AGM decided that no dividend s distributed by a
resolution of the AGM and authorized the Board to decide on
the distribution of an aggregate maximum of EUR 0.13 per
share as dividend from the retained earnings and/or as
assets from the reserve for invested unrestricted equity.

Timo Ahopelto, Sari Baldauf, Elizabeth Crain, Thomas
Dannenfeldt, Lisa Hook, Thomas Saueressig, Saren Skou,
Carla Srmits-Nusteling and Kai Oistamo were re-elected as
members of the Board for a term ending at the close of the
next AGM. In addition, the AGM resolved to elect Michael
McNamara as a new member of the Board for the same term
In its assembly meeting that took place after the AGM, the
Board re-elected Sari Baldauf as Chair of the Board and
Seren Skou as Vice Chair of the Board.

The Remuneration Report of the company's governing
bodies was adopted and the Remuneration Policy of the
company’s governing bodies was supported, both in advisory
resolutions.

Deloitte Oy was re-elected s the auditor for Nokia for the
financial year 2025 with Authorized Public Accountant Jukka
Vattulainen as the auditor in charge.

Deloitte Oy was elected as the sustainability reporting
assurer for the financial years 2024-2025.

The Board was authorized to resolve to repurchase 2
maximum of 530 million Nokia shares and to issue a
maximum of 530 million shares through issuance of shares
or spedia rights entiting to shares in one or more issues. The
authorizations are effective until 2 October 2025 and they
terminated the corresponding authorizations granted by the
AGM on 4 April 2023.

The AGM resolved to amend the Articles of Association of the
Company by updating the object of the company (Article 2),
updating the government authority that approves auditors
and adding the obligation to elect a sustainabilty reporting
assurer (Article 7), updating the general meeting formats to
include also the virtual general meeting (Article 9) and
updating the matters that the Annual General Meeting
decides on (Article 12)

Shares

The total number of Nokia shares on 31 March 2024,
5613 496 565. On 31 March 2024, Nokia and its subsidiary
companies held 90 652 721 Nokia shares, representing
approximately 1.6% of the total number of Nokia shares and
voting rights.

18 April 2024
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Risk Factors

Nokia and its businesses are exposed to a number of risks and

uncertainties which include but are not limited to:

« Competitive intensity, which is expected to continue at a high
level as some competitors seek o take share;

+ Changes in customer network investments related to their
ability to monetize the network;

+ Our ability to ensure competitiveness of our product
roadmaps and costs through additional RRD investments;

+ Our ability to procure certain standard components and the
costs thereof, such as semiconductors;

- Disturbance in the global supply chain;

« Impact of inflation, increased global macro-uncertainty,
major currency fluctuations and higher interest rates;

+ Potential economic impact and disruption of global
pandemics;

« War or other geopolitical confiicts, disruptions and potential
costs thereof,

+ Other macroeconomic, industry and competitive
developments;

« Timing and value of new, renewed and existing patent
licensing agreements with icensees;

- Results in brand and technology licensing; costs to protect
and enforce our intellectual property rights; on-going
ftigation with respect to licensing and regulatory landscape
for patent licensing;

+ The outcomes of on-going and potential disputes and
litigation;

Timing of completions and acceptances of certain projects;

Qur product and regional mix;

Uncertainty in forecasting income tax expenses and cash

outfiows, over the long-term, as they are also subject to

possible changes due to business mix, the timing of patent
licensing cash flow and changes in tax legislation, including.
potential tax reforms in varicus countries and OECD
initiatives;

+ Qur abilty to utilize our Finnish deferred tax assets and their
recognition on our balance sheet;

+ Qur ability to meet our sustainability and other ESG targets,
including our targets relating to greenhouse gas emissions;

as well the risk factors specified under Forward-looking

statements of this report, and our 2023 annual report on Form

20-F published on 29 February 2024 under Operating and

financial review and prospects-Risk factors.

Forward-looking statements

Certain statements herein that are not historical facts are
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking
statements reflect Nokia's current expectations and views of
future developments and include statements regarding: A)
expectations, plans, benefits or outlook related to our
strategies, projects, product launches, growth management,
ficenses, sustainability and other ESG targets, operational key
performance indicators and decisions on market exits; 8)
expectations, plans or benefits related to future performance
of our businesses (including the expected impact, timing and
duration of potential global pandemics, geopolitical conflicts
and the general or regional macroeconomic conditions on our
businesses, our supply chain, the timing of market changes or
turning points in demand and our customers’ businesses) and
any future dividends and other distributions of profit; C)
‘expectations and targets regarding financial performance and
results of operations, including market share, prices, net sales,
income, margins, cash flows, cost savings, the timing of
receivables, operating expenses, provisions, impairments,
taxes, currency exchange rates, hedging, investment funds,
inflation, product cost reductions, competitiveness, revenue
‘generation in any specific region, and licensing income and
payments;

18 April 2024

D) abilityto execute, expectations, plans or benefits related to
changes in organizational structure and operating model; )
impact on revenue with respect to litigation/renewal
discussions; and F) any statements preceded by or including
“continue”, “believe”, “commit”, “envisage”, “estimate”,
“expect’, “aim", “influence”, “wil", “target”, “liely”, “infend’,
“may”, “Could”, “would", “forecast”, “plan” or similar
expressions. These forward-looking statements are subject to
anumber of risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond
our control, which could cause our actual results to differ
materially from such statements. These statements are based
on management's best assumptions and beliefs in light of the
information currently available to them. These forward-looking
statements are only predictions based pon our current
expectations and views of future events and developments and
are subject t0 risks and uncertainties that are difficult to
predict because they relate to events and depend on
circumstances that will occur in the future. Factors, including
risks and uncertainties that could cause these differences,
include those risks and uncertainties identified in the Risk
Factors above.

“
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Financial statement information

Consolidated income statement (condensed)

Reported Comparable
EUR miion Note Q2 [ Qi @B
Netsales 23 w667 5859 = 5859
Costofsaes 22 Be6s 2397 Bes3)
Gross proft B 2235 219 2210 2200
Research and development expenses. s 1108) f1085) 1093
Seling, genersland sdminstrativ expenses 08) 9 (s96) 2
Other operating income and experses 7 & B 7
Operating profit B w0 s EQ e
Share ofresults o assodates andont ventures. 1 © i @
Finania icome and expenses £l 19 @ ©
Profitbefore tax =] w01 9 =
Income taxexpense s 2 an 31 22
Profit rom continuing operations| @ 20 501 2
Proftlos)from discontinued operations - ) - -
Profit for the period ) ) o1 )
Atributableto
Equityholders o the parent a 7 - E
Non-controlinginterests 4 10 4 10
Eamings per share atsbutabl to equity holders of the parent
Basic eamings per share, EUR
Continuing operatons 008 005 008 006
Proftfor the perod 008 005 008 006
Average numberof shares (000 shares). 5525756 5578005 5525756 5578005
Diksted earings per share, EUR
Continuing operatons o008 005 008 006
Proftfor the perod 008 005 008 006
Average numberof shares (000 shares) 5564089 568995 5564089 648995

The above condensed consoldated income statement shoud be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income (condensed)

EUR miion Q24
Profit for the period a8
Other comprehensive income.
Items that il not b redassfied o profit o loss
Remessurements of defned bensfit lans 18 £
Income tax elated totems that il ot b recasified to proft o koss s 191
toms that may be recssified to proft o koss.
Translaton dfferences
Netinvestment hedies
Cash flow and cther hedges
Financial ssetsat fir vaku through other comprehensive ncome
Other changes,net
Income tax elated totems that maybe recassified subsequently toproftorloss
Gther comprehensive ncome/lloss), net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the period
Atributable tor
Equity holders o the parent
Non-controlingnterests.

8

=
s

=)
]
)
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04

| |

The above condensed consoldated statement of comprehensie income shouid be read in onjunction with accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statement of financial position (condensed)

EUR miion Note 31 March 2026, 3 March2023 31 December 2023
ASSETS

Goodhil 5589 sses 5504
Otherintangie assets 1047 1235 108
Property, plant and equipment 1910 1992 1951
Right-of-se assets 881 2 206
Investments inassocated comparies and it ventures B 7 8
Non-currentnteres. bearing fiancia ivestments 6 509 a8 ns
Other non-curent inanclassets 6 102 1082 1100
Defined benefit pension assets 4 6450 6816 6258
Deferred taxassets: s 398 3757 3873
Other non-curent rceivables = 7 £
Total non-currentassets 2 27 2694
ventaries 2686 3299 278
Trade recenables 6 4325 s208 e
Contractasets 953 1220 118
Cumentincome taxassets 06 0 07
Other urrent rceivabes 78 %0 75
Curent interest-bearig francil nvestments 6 187 2880 1565
Other urrent financial and frm commitment assets 6 ) 2 w
Cash and cash equivalents 6 6561 4527 62
Total current assets 7864 79255 78 087
sets hld forssle £ — &
Total sssets Ners GEz) B850
‘SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share captal 26 %6 26
Share premium S 44 a8
Treasury shares G50 ) 652
Translaton diferences ] 52 i)
Faivaue and other reserves am 396 3605
Reserve for invested unvestricted equiy 15267 15486 15255
Retained earmings 1075 153 1404
Total shareholders' equity B EEg 20537
Non-controlingnterests o 100 @
Total equity GED BED 20628
Long-terminterest bearng labites 57 Tk 3700 367
Longtermlease labiities m a6 7
Defined benefit pension and post-employment laiites . 2200 2465 2209
Deferrd taxbiites 0 3. s
Contract abiites % ™ 20
Other on-curent abiities 105 % m
Provisions s s03 s s18
Total non-current abitties 75710 8167 8299
Short-term nterest bearing labites. 57 3 506 E
Short.termlase kabties m 6 198
Other fnancil and fem commitment labltes 6 20 EN =20
Contract abiites 23 20m 2157
Cumentincome ta biites 0 n 203
Trade payaties 6 3000 w8 2
Other urrent biities 6 2349 a2 284
Provisions s m &5 4
Totalcurrent abiities s 2 09m
Total shareholders'equity and abilties 67 am 9860
Shareholders' ecuty per share, EUR 38 Er i
Number of shares 1000 shaes,exciuding treasury shares) sz 5568357 sx2s601
The above condensed consoldated statement of inanc positon should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes
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Consolidated statement of cash flows (condensed)

EUR milion Qe )
‘Cash low from operating activiies

Proftfor the perod w8 29
Adustments 3 46
Depreciatonand amertization 2 %6
Restructuring charges 2 6
Feandalincome and expenses ) 18
Income taxexperse k) "
Other © «
Cash flows from operations before hanges et working optal 7 s
Change n et working captsl 2 15061
Decrease nreceivables 75 =
Decrease/lcrease) i inventores = 73
Decresse nnon-ntrest-bearingabities ) e8]
Cash flows from operations. 1219 29
Interest received 5 0
Interestpaid 2 1
Income taxes paid,net 022 35
"Net cash flows from operating 1067 B
Cash flow from nvesting actvities

Purchase of poperty, pant and eqipment an itangibl assets 2 =)
Proceeds from saleof property, plnt and equipment and ntangble assets 2 “
Proceeds from disposal of businesses, et o cashdisposed - 2
Purchaseofnterest bearing firancialinvestments o8) aoms
Proceeds from nterest bearing francil investments. 44 10m
Purchase of other non-curent fnandal assets ® 6
Proceds from othernon-current fnancil sssets EY 4
Other 1w an
Net cash flows used in nvesting activtes 100, 2]
Cash low from fnancing actvities

Acquiston of tressury shares ® 1
Proceeds from ong-term borroings. = 405
Repayment o long-term borrowings 2} 3
(Repayment offproceeds from shortterm borrowings ) "
Payment of princpa portion ofease abilties 3 o
Dhidends paid 166) )
et cash flows used in financing activtes ] )
Translaton diferences ] =)
Netincrease/{decrease) n cash and cash equivalents 2 640,
Cash and cash equivalents st begining of pariod 3 3
Cash and cash equivalents at end ofperod 6561 4827

Consoldated statement of cash flows combines cash flows from both the confinuing and the discontinued operations.

“The above condensed consodated statement of cash lows shod be read n corjunction with accompanying notes

18 April 2024 .
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Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity (condensed)

Reserve for
Fairvae imvested Total  Non

Shore  Share Tressury Trnshtion andother unwestncted  Retaned sharsholders Total
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oy 2075 W w o e sws  mw  aws _mom 5 s
ot forte period = = = = = = e & o m
Orercomprehensue s - - - ew w - w us0 W s
Toatcomprenersve cane = — - e = = s B E—TY
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Settementof e bszed - R - 1 - - -
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[o—_ — — e = e = = = @ @
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) Treasury shares acauied dring 2024 areacqured s part of the share buyback pogram anncunced on 25 Janary 2024 Th repurchasesstarted on 20 arch 2024, The

Puipose of th reprchases 1 opiise ok’ Copal sruchre tvough e ducton of optal. T reprchased shares wil b concaed

Treasury shares acqired during 2023 were cauied s art ofth shre byback proram announced on 3 Febuary 2022, The repurchasedshares werecanceled o 30

Novemer 3053

The repurchasesa Funded usingfunds i th resenve fornvesed unvestricted iy and the repurchases il redce total unvesticed eqity.

“The above condensed consofdated statement of changes i shareholders equity should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
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Notes to Financial statements
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

This unaudited and condensed consolcated finandil statement information of Nokia has been prepared in accordance with AS 34, Interm Financil
Reporting, and f should be read n conjunction ith the annual consoldated financal statements for 2023 prepared i accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standarck 2 publhed by the IAS8 and adopted by the EL. The same accounting poicies, methods of computation and applicatons of judgment are
folowed i thi financial tatement information as was folowed inthe annual consolcated financil statements for 2023 except for the folowing.

Startng from the first quartr of 2024 Nokia provides regional net saes nformation fo the Nokia group and s reportable segments based on three
geograptical areas: 1) Americas, ) APAC, and 3) EMEA.Net saes information for the group i further divided ino subregions as follows: Americas consits of
North America and Latin America, APAC consists of Greater Chind,India and Rt of APAC (formerly reported as A Paciic region, and EMEA consiss of
Europe and Midde East & Africa. Net sales for the Submarine Networks business are provided separataly from the geograptica regions. The purpose of the
change i to increase transparency of et saes information fo the reportat¥e segments. The comparative egionalnet sales information for the reportable:
segments for ach quarter and full year 2023 provided in Note 3. Net ales.

Percentages and figures presented herein may induce rounding differences and therefore may not add up precisey o the totals presented and may vary
from previously published financal nformation. This financial report was authorized for ssue by the Board of Drectors on 18 Apr 2024,

Net sles and operating pofi of the Nokia group, partcuary in Network Infastructure, Mobile Networks and Cloud and Network Senvices segments, are
Subject to seasonal flctuations being general highest in the fourth quarter and lowest in the first quarter of the year. This s mainy due to the seasonalty
i the spending cyces of communcations sendce providers.

Nokia Shanghai Bel
1n 2017, Nokia and Crina Huaxin Post & Telecomemunication Economy Developrment Center (Cina Huasin) commenced operations of th it verture Nokia
‘Shanghal Bel NSBI The contractual rrangement provides China Huaxin wit the fght o fuly transfe ts ownership interest i NSB to Nokia and Nokia with
the right o purchase China Huaxin's ounership nterest n NSB n exchange for a future cash settement. To refiect this, Nokia derecognized the non-
contoling interest batance related 1o NSB and recogrized a financial labifty based on the estmated future cash settiement to acaure China Huaxi's
‘ownership nterest. Any changes i the estimated future cash Settement re recorded in financa income and expense. In 2023, he contractual arangement.
was extended unti 30 June 2024. It expires unexercised, Nokia il derecognize the finanda abifty and record non-controllng interest equal to s share of
NS’ net assets with any ifference recorded within shareholders’equity.

O Tech

Nokia hokds  51% ownership intrest i TD Tech Holding Linited "TD Tech HK), a Hong Kong based joint venture holding company which Noka has
accounted for 25 an investment i associate. In 2023, TD Tech HK has entered into an agreement to ivest the entire business of the foint venture through
the sae of TD Tech HK's operating subsicares 0. onsortum consiting of Huawei Technologies, Chengdu Hightech Investment Group and other buyers.
The closing of the transaction s conditional Upon receiving regulatory approvas for the transaction and & expacted i 2024, Folowing the transacton, Nokia
wil xit from s harehaiding in TD Tech HK. Nokia expects to record a gain on the contemplted transactons. At 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of
Nokia's investment n TD Tech HK i included in 2sets held for al in the statement of financil poston

Device Management and Senvice Management Patform businesses

1n 2023, Nokia signed an agreement toselits Dvice Managerent and Senvice Maragernent Platform businesses, which are part of Cloud and Network
‘Services, to Lumine Group in. The deal s vakued at ELR 185 millon, which includes a contingent consideration of up to EUR 35 millon based on the
performance of the business during the firstyear following close. The dea closed on 1 April2024. At 31 March 2024, the assets of Device Management and
Service Management Patform businesses are incuded in assets held fo 53 in the statement of finandal positon.

Comparable and constant currency measures

Nokia presents financial informaton on a reported, comparable and constant curency bass. Comparable measures presented in i document exclude
ntangibie asset amortization and other purchase price fa value adjustments, goodwllmpsirments, resructLring reated charges and certain other ftems
affecting comparabity. In order to allow fullvisbilty on determining comparabl resuts, information on tems affecting comparabity is presented
Separately for each of the components of proftorloss.

Constant currency reporting provides additional information on change in financil measures on a constant currency basis n order to better reflect the
underling business performance. Therefore, change infinancial measures at constant cutency exchides the impact o changes n exchange ates in
‘comparison to o, our reporting currency.

s comparable or constant currency inancial measures are not defined n IFRS they may nt be dirctly comparable with imilary ttled measures used by
other companies, including those in the same industry. The priary rationale for preserting these measires i tha the management uses these measires in
assessing the fisinial performance of Nokia and believes that these measures provide meaningfl Supplementalinformation on the underying business
erformance of Noka These financial measures should not be considered in Solation from, or 2 a substtute for, financil information presented n
‘complance with IFRS For further detais on performance measures used by Nokia and reconcilations tthe dosest IFRS-defined measures, rfer tthe.
Performance measures secton accompanying ' consoidated financa tatement information.

18 April 2024 20
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Foreign exchange rates

Nokia's et saes are derved from various countries and invoiced i vrious currencies. Therefore, our business and results from operations are exposed to
changes in foreign exchange rates between the eurd, our reporting curTency, and other crrencis, such s the US doler, the Indian rupee and the Chinese
yan. To mitigate the impact o changes i exchange rates on ou resuls, wé hedge operative forecasted et foreign exchange exposures, ypicaly withina
12-month horizon, and apply hedge accounting inthe majorty o cases

The below table shows the exposure to diferent currencis fornet sales and total costs.

Qe a3 @2
Netsales Totalcosts Net sales Totalcosts Net sales Totalcosts
R 0% 5% % % % E
uso -60% ~40% -s0% -s0% -s0% s
™ 0% 5% 5% 5% 0% 5%
o 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
Other 5% 5% 5% 5% ~20% 5%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Endof Q26 alance shet ate 1 EUR - 108 USD, end of Q123 btance shest ot 1 ELR = 1,03 USD nd end of Q423 balance shest st 1 EUR = 111 USD

New and amended standards and interpretations

New standards and amendments to exiting standards that became effective on 1 January 2024, did not have a material impact on Noki's consoidated
financia tatements. New standarcs and amendments 1o exiting Standards fsued by the IASE that are not ye effective are not expected to have a.
materal mpact on Nokia's consolidated financial statements when adopted.

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Nokia has four operating and reportable segments for the fiianial reporting purposes: (1) Network Infastructure, 2] Mobile Networks,(3) loud and Network
Serices and () Nokia Technologie. Nokia ks presents segment evel informatin for Group Common and Other.In additon, Noki provides net saes
disdosure for the folowing business civisions within the Network Iffastructure segment.) P Networks, ) Opica Networks, (s Fixed Networks and (v)
‘Subimarine Networs. For detaded segment descriptions, lease efer to Note 22. Segment nformation, i the annual consolidated firandal statements for
2008

Accounting poicies of the segments are the same as those fo the group, except that tems afecting comparabilty are not alocated to the segments. For
‘more information on comparable measures and ters affecting comparabiy efer to Note 1. Generalnformation, and to the Performance Measures
section accompanying thi consoidated firancialstatement information.Inter-segment revenes and transfers are accounted for s f th revenues were to
thid partes, tht i, at cusrent market pries

I the first uarter of 2024 Nokia Technologies signed  rumber of smartphone patent icense agreements which had expired in earller periods. T led to
the recogition of EUR 0.4 bion of revenue related to the periods of non-payment.

Qe Cloud and Elminatons
Network  Moblle Network Nokda Group Common and unalocated

EUR miion nfrastructure | Networks _ Services Technologies _ and Other rems_ Nokia Group.
Netsales =3 57 2 75 £} @ “ee7
of which o other sogments = 1 = - 1 “ =
Gross proftlloss] Gl 3 E3 77 a ) 3
Gross margin % ses%  a2e%  Bo%  1000% 3% ar9%
Research and development expenses. B [ o B0 ) 1)
Seling, genersland sdminstrativ expenses @ o7 20 2 ) 2 708)
Other operating income and experses 1] . 1 ) s ) i
Operating proft/loss) £l @ @ =3 (2] Ton w0
Operating margin % 9% emw @% so%  (@a% so%
Share ofresults of assodates and ont - - 1 [ o - 1
Ventures

Financial income and experses 5
Profitbefore tax =]
Doprociaton and amortization (60 90 (19 © @ ) (251)

) Includes P Networks ne sales of R 554 i, Optical Networks ne sales of LR 344 i, Fixe Netwerks et sales of EUR 500 mllon and Submarine Networks et
e of EUR 323 mibon.
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Opersiogprof/loss) 3 R 1 & 3
Operating margin % 15.3% 5.3% 6% 61.6% (2729% 7.3%
Shre of resits of asodtes ndioin- - [ ' n - - [}
o

Frandalincome and experses o)
Prft before tax @
Depreciation and amortization (55) (88) 23 (19 [0/] (89 (266)
9 ke Nk et s of LR 781 o, Ot Ntk it e of LR 53 i, etk et e of LR 650l s s ok et

et

Material reconciling items between the group operating profit and total segment operating profit

EUR miion Qe s
Operating proftfor the grovp w00 a5
Restrcturing and sssodated charges 04 =
Amortizaton o acqired intangible assets 80 s
Impairment and write-off of sssts, netofrevrsals u o
Costsassociated with countryexit - )
Divestment of businesses. - o8
Total segment operating profit 557 7
3.NET SALES

Management has determined that Nokia's geographic areas are considered s the primary determinants to depict how the nature, amount,timing and
uncertainty ofrevenue and cash fiows are affected by economicfactors. Nokia's primary customer base consits of comparies that operate on a country-
Specifc or  regional . Although Nokia's echnology cyce s Smiar around the world, fferent countries and regions are inherently in a dfferent stage of
that cye, often influenced by macroeconomic condions specific o those countries and regions. In addtion to net ale to external customers by region,
the chief operating decsion maker revews segment net sales by aggregated regions and net sales by customer type discosed belo.

Each reportable segment,as described n Note 2. Segment nformation, consists of customers tht operate in all geographic areas. No reportable segment.
s spedfic revenue concentration n any Beographic area other than Nokia Technologies, which s ncluded wthin Europe.

Group net sales by region

EUR millon arze arss
Americas 1200 8%
Latin America n =
North Amerca 10m 1666
APAC %7 1768
GresterChina % %6
india %5 s
Restof APAC a0 EY
EMEr 2203 1909
Euwrope 1833 un
Midd East & Afica 40 s
Submarine Networks' P 285
Total w667 Saso

) Nokia provides netsle orthe Submarine Networks Business separataly o the et ofthe 704p o improve the usefuinessofdisclosed information by removi
LBty chucedy e Speciic nature o he Submorin oL BASs. reupto mere vrenenne
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Segment net sales by region

EUR million Qe oz
‘Network Infrastructure 662 2288
Americas sis 865
APaC 286 s
EvEA 08 o
‘Submarine Networks = 25
Mobile Networks 157 2587
Americas w6 705
APaC 509 12
EvEA o2 "
Cloud and Network Services &2 %0
mericas % 305
APaC e 15
EvEA % 27
Nokia Technologies 57 %2
Group Common and Other” ® P
Total “6e7 Sas9

61 ncudes shminations of ter-segment revenues.

Startng from the first quarter of 2024 Nokia provides regionai net sales nformation ako for it reportable segments, efer o Note 1. General information.
The following tabie presents comparative segment net sales by region nformation for each quarter and full year 2023

EUR million Q3 @z @ @ Q1eiz
‘Network Infrastructure 2288 g 807 2003 B0
Americas 864 & 59 8 281
APaC a8 405 30 30 1580
EvEA 61 8 595 s 252
‘Submarine Networks 25 ES m P 1120
Mobile Networks 2587 2623 2157 2450 9797
mericas 704 s 8 E 2618
APaC 1120 136 s P am
EvEA " &7 o a8 20
Cloud and Network Services %0 "2 "2 e 320
Americas 305 ES 00 r 1306
APaC 157 158 s w o
EvEA 27 08 25 8 1265
Nokia Technologies %2 En 28 = 1085
Group Common and Other” @ E 1 % 9
Total =) 5710 ) 5707 228

01 ncudes shminations of ter-segment revenues.

Net sales by customer type

EUR miion Qe oz
‘Commurications serviceproviders (C591 3226 3
Enterprise “w 566
Licensees £ %
Other” % 2
Total w67 Sas9

61 Includes et sles of Submarine Networks hich aperate i dferent marke, and adh Frequency Systems RF), wbich s beng managed 53 separte ey, andceran
e ems uch 2 lminatians f s Segmentrevenses. SUbrin NetwGas 0 RF et Sl 340 o reven rom COmmLCaUonsserce Praiers a0
erterprse customers.
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4. PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Nokia operates several post-employment plans in various courtries incuding both defined contrbution and defined benefit plars. Defined benefit plans.
indude pension plans and other post-employment benefit pans, provicing retierent healthcare benefits andIfe nsurance Coverage. Nokiaremeasired
5% of s defined benefit obigations and 98% of the pan assets at 31 March 2024, Noka' pension and ciher post-employment pans i the Urited

States have been remeasured Lsing updated valuations from an exteral actuary, and the main pension plans outside of the Urited States have been
remeasied based on updated asset vakations and changes i the discount ates durng the eporting period. The impact o not remeasuring ather persion
and post-employment abligations s onsidered not material At 31 March 2024, the weighted average ciscount rates used in remeasurement o the most
Sgrificant plans were a folows (comparatives at 31 Decermber 2023} US Pension 4 97% (4 675, Us OPEB 4979% 4 68Y%) Germany 3.34% (3.17%) and UK
480% (4519,

The funded status of Nokia's defined benefit plans (before the effect o the asset cefing) increased from 124 0%, or EUR 4 046 milon, at 31 December 2023

012619 or EUR 4 332 millon, at 31 March 2024. During the quarter the gobal defined benefit plan asse portfolio was invested approximately 729 n fixed
income, 6% n equiies and 229 I other asset casses, mainy private equit and real estate

Changes in pension and post-employment net asset/(liability)

31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 31 December 2023
EURmilion Pensions” USOPEB  Total Pensions” USOPEB  Total Pensions” USOPEB  Total
Netasset/labli recogized 1 Jamary 4755 B9 399 523 G 4m5 5o G 4%
Recogrized nincome statement n © 2 s 2 6 n 2] Bl
Recogrized nother comrehensive ncome & 68 18 % an ] 1w0s) 6 B
Contrbtions and benefits pad » - » & 3 & 136 7 u
Exchange df andother 0 en 8 to08) ® ) a2 15 nen
Netasset/labliy recognized st theend 5008 [58) 4250 53 (88 431 475 (9% 3989
of the period

() Includespensions, retrement indemities and athr post-employment pians.
2] includes Secton £20 ransers, medcare subsidies, and ober arsfers

Funded status

EUR miion 3 March 2024 31Decomber2023 30September 2023 30June2023  31March2023
Defined beneft obigation 16550 Ti6868) = () 8054
Farvaue ofplan assets 2092 2091 20818 21993 2405
Funded status ) “oks w186 o) o
Effectof asset coing &) n o ton o)
‘et asset recogrized st the end of the pariod W20 3959 “055 w180 E5]

5. DEFERRED TAXES

Deferred tax assets are recogrized to the extent it s probable tht future taxable profitwil be avalable against which the unused tax losses, unused tax

reits and deductible temporary differences can be utized n the relevant uriscctions. At 31 March 2024, Nokia has recogrized deferred tax assets of EUR
39 bilion (EUR 39 bilion at 31 Decenber 2023,

In aition,at 31 March 2024, Noka has unvecogrized deferred ta assets of approximately EUR 5 bilion EUR 5 bilon at 31 December 2023, the majoity of
‘which relte to France (apprGdmately EUR 4 billo. These deferred tax assets have ot been recognized du o uncertanty regarding ther tization. A
Sgrificant porton of the French unrecogrized deferred tax assets are ndefiite i nature and avaiable againt future French tax labiities, subect 102
mitation of 50% of annual taxable profis.

Nokia continualy evakiates the probabilty of utizing it deferred tax assets and considers both positive and negative evidence n s assessment.
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6. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and abites measured at fair value are categorized based on the avaiabitty of obsenvable nputs used to measure their far value. Three
ierarchcal ovel ar based on an fcreasing amount of udgment associated with the inputs used to derive fair vauation for thece ascets and Fabiies,
Level 1 being market values for exchange traded products, Level 2 being prmari based on pubicly avalable market information and Leve 3 requiring ot
management judgment. A the end of each reporting period, Noka categorizes s finandal assets and fabites o the appropriate levelof far value
hierachy. tens caried at fai valueinthe folowing tabl are measured at far value on a recuring basis. For more information about the valuation methods.
and principles, refer to Note 5 2. Financal assets and kabiftes, and Note 5.3. Deriative and frm comitrment assets and Fabities n the annual consolidated
financia statementsfor 2023,

s R

— S

1 March 2024 st it it~ i
e ey o — i
e e T 0
e = 5 - o= T e o=
o il O - s = P x o
vty = - =z s a =
ot = = = = 2 : =
e 2= - = o
Creeeam byt s = oa = e m
e S s = -
T - m—— e —
e e T e
e 2 E = = =5
St == = Do o«
P FE s s
oot 5 =5 = s =
e e g 5 = = = IE =
oy - - - = Za
e r m—— T —
P—— =~

et R,

31 December 2023 cost Ian" income’

e T e v Y
T e e e
i = 3 - o S x o
S s « 2 %2 PR
o ev—— 5 = - P x =
oo £ I = I
s i i o on
orbrrrr OSPN a I oa = -
f——" > o o
e - —— T —r
e = e
oo o 2 - - = % a
oo iraiervrrre a - -z e &
P v : -z oa I =
ot = - x Z s =
ey s « - =z a2
o B S e
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1 Mo inancalnsruments measured ¢ Fr vl trough other comprehensive ncome are categorized i o vake Werarchy lvel o lve 3

Lease fabities are not induded n the fair value of fisandal instruments.

Level 3 Financal assets incude a arge number of investments i unlisted equiies and unlisted venture funds, including investments managed by NGP Capital
<pecilzing in growth.stage investing. The far value o level 3 fvestments  determined using one or more vakiation techniques with Unobservable iputs,
‘where the s of the market approach general consists of sing comparable market transactions,whil the use of the income approach generally consists
of cacuating the et present value of expected future cash flows.

Level 3 Financal labiities consit primariy of a conditonal bligation to Crina Huain related to Noka Shanghai Bel.
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(Changes n level 3 financial assts and fabiftes measured at far vale:

EUR milion

Financis Assets

7 January 2024

"Net gains n icome staterment
Adtons.

Deductions
Transfer ut of evel .

31 March 2026

The gains and osses from venture fund and simiarinvestments categorized i level 3 are incuded n other operating income and expenses. The gains and
lossesfrom otherleve 3 financal assets and abiies are recorded in firandal income and expenses. Anet gain of EUR 14 millon related to leve  financal
nstruments hel at 31 March 2024 was included n the profit and oss during 2024 net loss of EUR 42 mlon related to level 3 financial mstruments held at
31 December 2023 during 2073

7. INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES

Carrying amount (EUR milion)
;
lssuer/borrower Instrument Currency (millon)_Final maturity __ 31March2024 __ 31March2023 31 December 2023
ok Corporation 200% Serior Notes R I8 3 = 3 3
NokiaCorporation EBRED Loan ER 500 22005 500 500 500
Nokia Coporation B 88D Loan” Rt s 167 20 167
Nokia Corporation 2ahSenorNotes  ER 292 52005 28 286 29
Nokia Corporation 200% Senir Notes R @0 320 610 59 o
Nokia Corporation 43woseniorhotes  USD 500 672027 = s @0
Nokia of America Corporation  650% Seor Notes uD % 10m & Y &
Nokia Corporation 3uskSenorNotes  ER 500 52028 s s wn
Nokia of America Corporation 6453 Serior Notes U 206 320 - 191 187
Nokia Corporation ey BR 0 s 505 3 510
Nokia Corporation G62%SeniorNotes  USD 500 5208 a6 P 6
Nokia Corpoation and various. Other abites k3 n 10
Total 30 w0 wo

) The remaning loan rom theNordi ivestment Bank ) i repayabie i o equal nual nstaliments n 2024 3nd 2025

2] The b has 3 ane-tm redempton preium a maturiyof UR 4 iln cacs Nk doss ot meet 1 comitment o r&duce 1 reenhauss g3 (GHG) misions
LC52 € cros s vlo chln (cope 1 3, and 3 by S0% tween 2019 and 2030, This arge & 50 o Nekis s keySusaiabllty trgets and hosbeen slected o be the
SCatananiny Performance Target mNoki' Sustanabl Fiace amemwok (hat enabie e Seuance of SUstanaiiyIned (nancng mSULTEnts

Nokia has 2 committed Revoling Credit Facity with nominal vaue of ELR 1500 milion maturing in June 2026, except for ELR 88 mlfon portion maturing n
June 2024.For information about Nokia's uncommitted funding programs, efer to Note 5.4.Financal sk management n the annual consoldated fiiancal
Statements for 2023. All borrowings and credit acities are Semor unsecured and have o financil covenans.

18 April 2024

26




image29.png
8. PROVISIONS
EUR milion Restructuring Warranty _ dvfonments__projctiosses Other” Tots
A Jamuary 2026 3 200 =1 0 3 26
Charged o rcome statement
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Rovorsals = 3 2] - ) 5
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Utized uring period” w2 e © ) ) [
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1 Other poviions include proviions for vrkous obigaions such as materl labily indiect 3 provisions,destmentelated proision, mploye-reatedproisions oher
han rsirctuing proveions and st retrement algatiens.
@) The tlzaton ofretructuing provion nclucdestams ransferrd  accrued expenses, ofwhich EUR 70 milon remained i accrved expenses at31 March 2026

9. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

EUR miion 31 March 2026 FMarch2023  31December 203
Contingent iabiities on behalfof group compariss.
(Guarantees ssued by financial institutions

Commerc guarantees 1629 (eSS um
Non-commercal guarantees = = &
Corporate uarantees
Commercl guarantees 04 o 25
Non-commercal guarantees = El B
Financing commitments.
Customer finance commiments > ” s
Verture fund commitments 3 w o

The amounts inthe table above represent the maximum prindpal amount of commitments and contingendes, and these amourts do not reflect
‘management’s expected outcormes.

Litigations and proceedings
Sifcantchangestonfomaton about tigaton and proceecingspresented i Noki's nnual consolted firancal staements for 2023

Continental

12015, Contnental Automotve ystems (Continetal brought reach of FRAND fa, reasonable and non-sciminatory el and antinust s aganst
Nokia and thars Th St cams ware Gmsed. In 2062 this decson became il aftr Contnnta st on appes and reconsration reQuess
Contients a0 roughtbreach o Cotrctan FRAND ot s agars Nk i 021 Inth g of 2023 Nokas ot 15 s was ranted
o part and dened i pa, an he action s proceeding on e remaining s a i tme.

Amazon

12023, Nokia commenced atent nfringement proceedings agins: Azon in Gemany, th Eropean Unife Patent Court,ni, the Unted Kingdorm the
Unted tates temationalade Commsciony st Coutt an Erasl oS (s aone, more than 30 patent re 15t overing vieo rolred
echncoges mplmented i ATz senicos and Govies.

w

12023 Nokia commenced atentnfringement proceedings aganst P nth Unte Sttes(ntemations Trade CommisonVDitic Court i, Gerary
20 Eropesn Unihed arentCourt. Aross thess acon, here are 14 patets 5., covering ko Codng tecmaoges Impiemented i s produce
Vecifone

I th irst cuarterof 2026, Nokia commenced patent nffingement proceecingsagains Veronein Gy ar he Eutopean Unfed Patrt Cour. Aross
hese acions, thee are e Ptent n St coveig st echnologes mpmented nverfones e,
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Performance measures

‘Certain financial measures presented in this interm report are not measures of fnancia performance, financia poston or cash flows defined in FRS, and
therefore may not be directly comparabl with inancal measures used by ather Compaies, induding those i the sare industy. The primary ratordle for
presenting these measures & that the management ses these measures i assessing the financal performance of Nokia and beleves that these measures
provide mearingful supplemental nformation on the underlying business performance. These financial measures should not be considered in folaton from,
o 352 substitute fo, firandalinformation presented in compliance with FRs.

Beginring with ts Annual Report 2023 Noka changed how it define s Free cash flow measure ta better algn f with common practice and Non-GARP
reporting guidefines.Previously Noki defined Free cash flow as Net cah flows from operating acthiies - purchases of property, plant and equipment and
ntangible assets (capital expenditures) + proceeds from sale of poperty,piant and equipment and intangB assets - purchase of non-curent financil
nvestments + proceeds from sae of non-curent fivandial investments. The new defition s Net cach flows from operating actviis - purchases of
property,plant and equipment and ntangble assets (captal expenitures). The comparative amountsfor Free cash flow presented i thisreport have been
revised sccordingy.

The below tables provide summarized information on the performance measures included in thi nterm report as wel a recondiations of the performance
measures to the amounts presented i the financi statements.

Performance messure_Defiition Purpose
Comparable measures_ Comparable measures oxcude ntangible asset amertization and ather _ We belleve that our comparable resls provde mearingful

price far vlue o ooiud mosements, ‘Supplemental nformatin to both management and investors regards

FeSiricying rested harges s ceriai othe s ffecting N s umderlying busins perfcrmance by exchsing erta s o

income and experies that may not ba ndichtive of Noka's Busines.
gpersingresus Comparsbiecomrating proft s used ko n
g management remineraton.

Constant crency netWher et sle s reported o a constantcrrency b/ adusted for We provide adtonal formationcn et e on 3 constant i
R o tons oo el s s e hoont s Lol s o iy Reehbon oo o Pl g
Scjmtad fo arency ¢ cirences t e, o reporing ey, are the verags sctsl  Underiing busness peforance
Fikatons peode o o e compirates franca peed Threfare,
neConctan stency nat e ek s acused o crrency
Fctuatons excuce he moactof changes m exchange ot g the
Gimert perd mcomparsdns 0.
Comparsbe returmon Comparabe cperating profit after . st four quartrs nvested  Comparaleretur o vestad cophal s used o messurs how ffden
e T e L i T R e R e e e N
Comparabi et on st capta s preserted o
Comparabe cperating _ Comparabecperatng prft - omparable operating proftx - Cormparaie coeratingproft st i ndicates heprof bty of
prots st ok Comparable éorme o expense | comparabe rof efoe ) Nok's urceryngsngas persions st dacucing the ncome tax
impact We e o aperating ol afer o s acute
Cofpartle et o Pvested
Tvestedcapital | Totalequiy ol arest bearng Iabies total cath andintaret,  vested captal ndcates e book e f capialraed from ey
besing e vesments a1 det mtrment hdrslececah and i asete el by ok
wwmmummmmm&emmwmm
Totalcashand Total cosh s trest beaing Francl vestent consatof s andTotacashand terest beaing oandal ivestments = uaed o reats
erestbe oo s 3 et PR b nancol muEsimerts 3 funch vBiab 1o ok o un 2 rrent 3o mest n e Smess

Fon-Gurent nterest-beanng fnancal meestments.

actites as wel s povide retum fo secuity holders.

et cash and nterest_bearing financal rvestments equals fotal cash

et cooh and terest bearig financal vestrents & sed to ndcate

bearing nancl 30 nterest bearing francia Imiestments s ong-tarmandshort. Nk < uidiy peston sHercadh eQured t0 et the mtErest-
investments (Net  term ntrest-bearkng labiite. L ease labftes arenot inckded n ____ bearing biics
@ terest bearing labities Recondlaton of et cashand nterest bearng
Fnancil vestinents t the smounts n the consorciated statement of
financil posiion s presented below.
Free cash fow, ‘et cash iows from Free cash flow s the cas that Noki generates fter mvestments i

coeratngactiiespurchasesc property, pant
e R R

plnt s £ Seset, andwe bkt
e eanigh kel iamiaton s R Fopresats the ch
Ehaiabe toserie s repay mteret besing francl
g o el e g s i
Gatite furctoshreholders | .3 st f coth generaton,
Working capial ificency and Copta dscpln of te buiness

Coptal expenditare

Purchasesof property,pantsod scuipmentand rtangie ssets
e e e e B e

We use contal xpenditure to descrie mvestments n praft generat
Scivises e e gt

Recuring/One-time _ Recuring messures,such 2 ecuring et sle,are based onreverues  We e recuringane-trne messures o rove comparabity between
Ty T e el R i = 24

he mpack o cich up net S rlating 3 prot P One- .

measires such as on-time net sk, relette revenues hatarenot

ey tocontine nthe e
Rt oo Attt cqua e o o st bafors Ganges s We e sted il o rovte e ad prseriatin when

orkh capta SUbtotal  the consaidated statement of coth fows.

descrioing the cagh laws.

Tocuring amualcost  Reducton  cost f sle and operating expence esing rom e We e recuing ol costsavge messure tomorttr e progress

g ot g gy vt e e S A oo g in o ot coo i o otaoEned e he RmtLocant
otre ansacion aganctpan

idags,  ect T i LAl e RS ety o et e o o B vtorati

socn et v st dfonof estrcung under RS o a1 o mesars of e airaton and transortion

oo e i e e L o

asfion
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Comparable to reported reconciliation
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Comparable return on invested capital (ROIC)

Q124
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This financial report was approved by the Board of Directors on 18 April 2024.

Media and Investor Contacts:

Communications, tel. +358 10 448 4900 email: press.services@nokia.com
Investor Relations, tel. +358 4080 3 4080 email: investor relati ia.com

« Nokia plans to publish its second quarter and half year 2024 results on 18 July 2024.

« Nokia plans to publish its third quarter and January-September 2024 results on 17 October 2024.
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